
Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board
Agenda

Date:      Thursday, 8 March 2018
Time:      5.00 pm
Venue:   The Writing Room - City Hall, College Green, 
Bristol, BS1 5TR

Distribution:
Councillors: Geoff Gollop (Chair), Charlie Bolton, Tom Brook, Jude English, Gill Kirk, Brenda Massey, 
Graham Morris, Anthony Negus, Estella Tincknell, Donald Alexander and Steve Pearce

Copies to: John Readman (Strategic Director - People), Alison Comley (Executive Director: 
Communities), Shahzia Daya (Service Director - Legal and Democratic Services), Andrea Dell (Service 
Manager Democratic Engagement), Lucy Fleming (Democratic and Scrutiny Manager), Nicki 
Beardmore (Head of Paid Service), Denise Murray (Acting Executive Director: Resources), David 
Fowler (Members' Office Manager (Conservative)), Stephen Fulham, Zarah Jama and Paul Shanks

Issued by: Andrea Dell, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 92 222000
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 28 February 2018

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Overview and Scrutiny Management Board – Agenda

Agenda
1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information 

(Pages 4 - 5)

2. Apologies for absence 

3. Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors.  They are asked to 
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular 
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4. Minutes and Actions of the previous meeting (s) 
- 18th December 2017 – to follow
- 12th February 2018

(Pages 6 - 13)

5. Chair's Business 
To note any announcements from the Chair

6. Public Forum 
Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item 

Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum.  The 
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at 
the back of this agenda.  Public Forum items should be emailed to 
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines 
will apply in relation to this meeting:-

Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the 
meeting.  For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in 
this office at the latest by 5 pm on 2nd March 18

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


Overview and Scrutiny Management Board – Agenda

Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the 
working day prior to the meeting.  For this meeting this means that your 
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on 7th 

March 18

7. Task and Finish Group Updates 

(Pages 14 - 16)

8. Arena Update 

(Pages 17 - 25)

9. Update on the Review of the Library Service 

(Page 26)

10. Scrutiny Ways of Working - Outcomes from the Member 
Workshop 

(Pages 27 - 48)

11. Outcome from the Meeting in Common with South 
Gloucestershire Council re the Benjamin Condon Case 

(Pages 49 - 55)

12. Exempt Materials 

(Pages 56 - 61)

13. Work Programme 
To note the work programme (Pages 62 - 65)

14. Information Item:  Mayor's Forward Plan 

(Pages 66 - 76)

15. Information Item:  P9 Finance Report 

(Pages 77 - 91)



www.bristol.gov.uk  

 

 

Public Information Sheet 
 
Inspection of Papers - Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk. 
 
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.  
 
Other formats and languages and assistance 
For those with hearing impairment  

Other o check with and  
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in 
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer.  Please give as much notice as 
possible.  We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular 
meeting. 
 
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment.  If you 
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Public Forum 

 
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most 
meetings.  Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting 
room one hour before the meeting.  Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk  or 
Democratic Services Section, Brunel House St Georges Road Bristol BS1 5UY.  The following 
requirements apply: 
 
• The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is 

about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.  
• The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.   

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and the ‘How to Have Your Say’ pdf for the parameters of each 
individual Committee and what will happen to your submission. 
 
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer 
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the 
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles 
that may be attached to statements. 
 
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and 
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will 
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a 
public record (available from Democratic Services).  
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/138133/bc-how-to-have-your-say-at-public%20meetings.pdf/71c6217a-950d-408d-b863-948f383bcda6


www.bristol.gov.uk  

 

 

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details.  However, because of time 
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement  
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain.  Public Forum statements 
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s 
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet. 
 
Process during the meeting: 
 
• Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions 

that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.  
• There will be no debate on statements or petitions. 
• The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that 

your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will 
have the greatest impact. 

• Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. 
• If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to 

speak on the groups behalf. 
• If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken 

your statement will be noted by Members. 
 
Webcasting/ Recording of meetings  

 
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full 
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except 
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years.  If you 
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have 
given your consent to this.  If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the 
webcasting staff.  However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means 
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and 
report on the meeting  (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be 
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others 
attending and that is not within the council’s control. 

Page 5

http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/


Agenda Title of Report/Description Action and Deadline Responsible Officer Action Taken
4. Minutes and Actions of the 

Previous Meetings
The report previously requested in relation to 
Council Tax/Students is to be added to the Work 
Programme for March/April

Lucy Fleming In progress

“ “ Minutes in relation to the Arena discussion (7th 
December, item 10) to be amended to include 
Members’ comments re the need to examine all 
aspects of the Arena project, not just value for 
money. 

Lucy Fleming Complete

6. Public Forum A written reply to be sent to Mr David 
Redgewell in response to his public forum 
statement,  with a copy to OSM

Johanna Holmes Complete – see appendix A

7. Scrutiny Ways of Working A report summarising comments from the OSM 
discussion in relation to the Ways of Working 
proposals is to be provided to inform the 
workshop on 22nd February. 

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

8. The Arena A statement is to be submitted to the next 
Cabinet meeting reiterating OSM’s request that 
scrutiny be allowed to review the Arena 
proposals in detail before any decision is taken 
by the Cabinet.  Clarification is also sought on 
the date of any such Cabinet decision.

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

“ “ An information paper setting out the planning 
implications of any proposals to move the Arena 
from the Arena Island site is to be provided for 
the next OSM meeting, with a briefing to follow 
if required. 

Johanna Holmes Complete

9. Libraries Councillor Craig to be asked to provide a Lucy Fleming/Andrea In progress

Bristol City Council
OSMB
Action Sheet 
12th February 18

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 4



statement for the next OSM meeting clarifying 
the situation regarding the review of the library 
service including objectives, timeline and next 
steps.  Councillor Craig is also to be invited to 
attend the meeting. 

Dell

10. Task and Finish Group Updates The standing item is to be listed earlier on the 
agenda at future meetings. 

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

11. Work Programme The following items are to be added to the Work 
Programme;

1. Bristol City Council’s Business Plans – 
March/April 18

2. How to make consultation more 
effective (including possible joint 
working with the West of England 
Combined Authority)

3. Scrutiny of the Housing Company – 
potential date April 18

4. Outcome from the Meeting in Common 
with South Gloucestershire Council to 
consider the UBHT’s response to the 
Benjamin Condon case – March 18

5. Waste Company collection methodology 
(including proposed schedule and type of 
vehicle) – to be listed as soon as possible

6. Governance Arrangements i.e. how to 
improve the relationship between OSM 
and other bodies such as the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and West of England 
Combined Authority – to be listed for 
18/19

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

P
age 7



Previous Actions Carried Over

18th January 18

Agenda Title of Report/Description Action and Deadline Responsible Officer Action Taken
7. Budget Proposals 18/19 That additional details of the Council’s proposed 

debt recovery scheme be brought to Scrutiny in 
due course.

Lucy Fleming To be scheduled

“ “ That the City Council was doing work to assess 
the impact of Brexit and detailed findings would 
be provided to Scrutiny in due course

Tim Borrett/Lucy 
Fleming

To be scheduled

P
age 8



Appendix A – Reply to the Public Forum Statement from Dave Redgewell re Public Toilets
APPENDIX A

Response to OSMB Public Forum Statement 12/02/2018 from Mr Davic Redgewell

To mitigate the impact of the difficult decision made to close some public toilets, we have launched the Community Toilet Scheme which is 
similar to others run successfully in local authorities around the country.

We have asked businesses and organisations to make their facilities available to the public without exception or discrimination.

Our aim is that 70% of Community Toilet Scheme provision will be wheelchair accessible. We will not only grow the number of toilet facilities 
accessible to Bristol visitors and residents but we will ensure that there will be toilet facilities available in the areas where public toilets are 
closed. 

The list and map of Community Toilets and other toilets is available to view on the council website 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/en_US/streets-travel/public-toilets and we will make paper maps available later in the year.

A similar toilet scheme has been running in Bedminster for a number of years and a map of all premises where the public can use publicly 
accessible toilet facilities is available here http://www.linkagebristol.org.uk/uploads/files/bedminstertoiletmapA.pdf

Since we launched the scheme at the end of January we signed 20 toilets to the Community Toilet Scheme with a further 16 shown as being 
publicly accessible. This is more than the 14 toilets closed at the end of January 2018.

Each Community Scheme Toilet will be identifiable by new signage showing what facilities are available. We have also found organisations to 
take on the running of toilets threatened with closure such as those on those on the Downs and by the Suspension Bridge. 

Gemma Dando – Director of Neighbourhoods and Communities

P
age 9

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/en_US/streets-travel/public-toilets
http://www.linkagebristol.org.uk/uploads/files/bedminstertoiletmapA.pdf


Agenda Title of Report/Description Action and Deadline Responsible Officer Action Taken
4. Minutes and Actions of the 

Previous Meetings
The report previously requested in relation to 
Council Tax/Students is to be added to the Work 
Programme for March/April

Lucy Fleming In progress

“ “ Minutes in relation to the Arena discussion (7th 
December, item 10) to be amended to include 
Members’ comments re the need to examine all 
aspects of the Arena project, not just value for 
money. 

Lucy Fleming Complete

6. Public Forum A written reply to be sent to Mr David 
Redgewell in response to his public forum 
statement,  with a copy to OSM

Johanna Holmes Complete – see appendix A

7. Scrutiny Ways of Working A report summarising comments from the OSM 
discussion in relation to the Ways of Working 
proposals is to be provided to inform the 
workshop on 22nd February. 

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

8. The Arena A statement is to be submitted to the next 
Cabinet meeting reiterating OSM’s request that 
scrutiny be allowed to review the Arena 
proposals in detail before any decision is taken 
by the Cabinet.  Clarification is also sought on 
the date of any such Cabinet decision.

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

“ “ An information paper setting out the planning 
implications of any proposals to move the Arena 
from the Arena Island site is to be provided for 
the next OSM meeting, with a briefing to follow 
if required. 

Johanna Holmes Complete

9. Libraries Councillor Craig to be asked to provide a Lucy Fleming/Andrea In progress

Bristol City Council
OSMB
Action Sheet 
12th February 18

P
age 10



statement for the next OSM meeting clarifying 
the situation regarding the review of the library 
service including objectives, timeline and next 
steps.  Councillor Craig is also to be invited to 
attend the meeting. 

Dell

10. Task and Finish Group Updates The standing item is to be listed earlier on the 
agenda at future meetings. 

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

11. Work Programme The following items are to be added to the Work 
Programme;

1. Bristol City Council’s Business Plans – 
March/April 18

2. How to make consultation more 
effective (including possible joint 
working with the West of England 
Combined Authority)

3. Scrutiny of the Housing Company – 
potential date April 18

4. Outcome from the Meeting in Common 
with South Gloucestershire Council to 
consider the UBHT’s response to the 
Benjamin Condon case – March 18

5. Waste Company collection methodology 
(including proposed schedule and type of 
vehicle) – to be listed as soon as possible

6. Governance Arrangements i.e. how to 
improve the relationship between OSM 
and other bodies such as the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and West of England 
Combined Authority – to be listed for 
18/19

Lucy Fleming/Andrea 
Dell

Complete

P
age 11



Previous Actions Carried Over

18th January 18

Agenda Title of Report/Description Action and Deadline Responsible Officer Action Taken
7. Budget Proposals 18/19 That additional details of the Council’s proposed 

debt recovery scheme be brought to Scrutiny in 
due course.

Lucy Fleming To be scheduled

“ “ That the City Council was doing work to assess 
the impact of Brexit and detailed findings would 
be provided to Scrutiny in due course

Tim Borrett/Lucy 
Fleming

To be scheduled

P
age 12



Appendix A – Reply to the Public Forum Statement from Dave Redgewell re Public Toilets
APPENDIX A

Response to OSMB Public Forum Statement 12/02/2018 from Mr Davic Redgewell

To mitigate the impact of the difficult decision made to close some public toilets, we have launched the Community Toilet Scheme which is 
similar to others run successfully in local authorities around the country.

We have asked businesses and organisations to make their facilities available to the public without exception or discrimination.

Our aim is that 70% of Community Toilet Scheme provision will be wheelchair accessible. We will not only grow the number of toilet facilities 
accessible to Bristol visitors and residents but we will ensure that there will be toilet facilities available in the areas where public toilets are 
closed. 

The list and map of Community Toilets and other toilets is available to view on the council website 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/en_US/streets-travel/public-toilets and we will make paper maps available later in the year.

A similar toilet scheme has been running in Bedminster for a number of years and a map of all premises where the public can use publicly 
accessible toilet facilities is available here http://www.linkagebristol.org.uk/uploads/files/bedminstertoiletmapA.pdf

Since we launched the scheme at the end of January we signed 20 toilets to the Community Toilet Scheme with a further 16 shown as being 
publicly accessible. This is more than the 14 toilets closed at the end of January 2018.

Each Community Scheme Toilet will be identifiable by new signage showing what facilities are available. We have also found organisations to 
take on the running of toilets threatened with closure such as those on those on the Downs and by the Suspension Bridge. 

Gemma Dando – Director of Neighbourhoods and Communities

P
age 13

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/en_US/streets-travel/public-toilets
http://www.linkagebristol.org.uk/uploads/files/bedminstertoiletmapA.pdf


Scrutiny Task and Finish - Progress Updates and Next Steps (March 2018)

Group Title Progress update and next steps 
1 Parks

Scrutiny Advisor: 
Romayne de Fonseka

The Group met on 6th February.  Items included a session led by the Parks Forum on the impending Nesta bid 
(“Rethinking Parks”) which is being made jointly by the Parks Forum and BCC.  The Forum was seeking the support of 
the T&F Group, which it received.  Provisional outcomes of the recently ended public consultation were also discussed, 
and it was noted that further conversations about implementation of these proposals would be required.  There was 
debate as to whether the next meeting should be a special budget session, further guidance is being sought from 
members on this.   Further discussion is also required to review the aims of the T&F Group and confirm the long and 
short term objectives.

2 Council Commissioning 
& Contracts  
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Louise deCordova

The Contracts and Commissioning task group held a joint session on 7 February, with the Adults and Children’s Social 
Services Task Groups to consider how elected members can have earlier engagement in the procurement and 
commissioning process. The session was a dialogue with commissioners, considering lessons learned from previous 
commissioning processes and proposed recommendations for future councillor engagement and opportunities for joint 
working.

3a Demand on Social 
Services (Adults)
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Louise deCordova

Members held a joint session on 7 February, with the Contracts and Commissioning and Children’s Social Services Task 
Groups to consider how elected members can have earlier engagement in the procurement and commissioning 
process. The session was a dialogue with commissioners, considering lessons learned from previous commissioning 
processes and proposed recommendations for future councillor engagement and opportunities for joint working.

On 19 February, the group met to explore the potential for use of assistive technology to transform services and save 
resources. 

The next meeting will discuss Delayed Transfers of Care and consider social prescribing.

Future meeting dates:
 19/03/18

3b Demand on Social 
Services (Children)
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Louise deCordova

Members held a joint session on 7 February, with the Contracts and Commissioning and Adult’s Social Services Task 
Groups to consider how elected members can have earlier engagement in the procurement and commissioning 
process. The session was a dialogue with commissioners, considering lessons learned from previous commissioning 
processes and proposed recommendations for future councillor engagement and opportunities for joint working.

Future meetings will consider the following:

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7



Group Title Progress update and next steps 

 To test that the Early help offer from the Council is meeting the needs of families
 To scrutinise the demands being placed on statutory services and whether future transformation work will 

improve outcomes at reduced cost
 To consider offer to young people provided by the new targeted youth service
 

Future meeting dates:
 14/3/18

  
4 Council Assets

Scrutiny Advisor: 
Jo Holmes

The group last met on the 26th January when the Interim Head of Asset Management gave a presentation on ‘Asset 
Management and what this means for Bristol City Council and the City’.  

Following on from this the Interim Executive Director: Growth and Regeneration has requested that he and the Interim 
Program Manager (Property - Asset Strategy) attend the next meeting.  This will now be on the 9th March, 10.30am.   
This meeting will be to take a closer look at some of the data that’s being gathered and timelines for the current 
processes.   

5 Cribbs Patchway  New 
Neighbourhood 
Scrutiny Advisor: Jo 
Holmes

The group last met in January when they were briefed on the current developments and outcome of the Network Rail 
report with regards to the options for the new Henbury train station. 

 The Scrutiny Advisor has been in touch with Transport Officers, who are still waiting for the traffic modelling 
information from the consultants that will help to inform the traffic mitigation measures on the A4108. 

Date of next meeting TBC.

6 Air Quality & Pollution
Scrutiny Advisor: Jo 
Holmes

The last meeting was held in January where Members were taken through content of the forthcoming February March 
Cabinet Report which included the technical work undertaken for options for the development of a ‘Clean Air Plan for 
Bristol’. This meeting was carried out with Members in advance of the Cabinet Report being published so that the Task 
and Finish Group’s views could be taken into account and also included in the Cabinet report as ’feedback from 
Scrutiny ’.

Date of the next meeting and the details are yet TBC.  

7 Children’s Centres
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Romayne de Fonseka

An initial briefing with the Service Manager is to be arranged, to bring members up to speed on the new model 
currently under implementation and to agree what the outcome measures of the new model will be.  Following this, 
the Group will start work in the early autumn to allow the new structure time to bed in.

P
age 15



Group Title Progress update and next steps 
8 Libraries

Scrutiny Advisor: 
Romayne de Fonseka

The Conclusions of the T&F Group went to Cabinet on 4th December and a formal response was provided by the Mayor. 
This concludes Phase 1 of the Group’s work, which now moves on to Phase 2.  An engagement workshop for members 
led by Mutual Ventures consultants was held on 7th February. The T&F Group is holding its next meeting on 1st March 
which has been organised by the Chair, not the Scrutiny Team. The further direction of the group is to be confirmed. 

9 Fire Safety in Council-
owned High Rise 
Buildings
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Romayne de Fonseka

Proposed that this would take place after the government recommendations have been issued.  The timescale for this 
is unclear at the present time.

10 Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) / Budget
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Louise deCordova

It was agreed that further engagement and feedback at key stages of the budget cycle should continue to take place 
throughout the year with a view to gain clear oversight of the Council’s financial governance processes and budgets. 
The schedule for future meeting dates to be considered in due course.

11 Youth Council Priority 
(this is not a Task & 
Finish Group)
Scrutiny Advisor: 
Jo Holmes

Prior to the Bristol City Youth Council (BCYC) meeting February 5th some Members who’d previously expressed an 
interest in this priority met at fairly short notice to discuss what the approach should be moving forward.  It was 
highlighted how difficult it is for scrutiny to have a direct impact the BCYC’s priorities.  So it was proposed at the pre-
meeting that support to the BCYC it’s approached slightly differently in future, and it was provisionally agreed that the 
aim would be to have one named Cllr at from each party to support the YC however they wished to make use of them. 
 It was recognised that this will need be discussed and confirmed at OSMB.  For info: this proposal was briefly discussed 
by those at the pre-meeting with Martin James that evening who also agreed this would be a good way forward.

There were two actions identified at the PHSE sub-grp meeting afterwards which were:
 Cllrs who are also school governors to help ensure there is a contact in every school for the BCYC as this 

network is still very patchy.  This would ideally be the head teacher or a deputy or, if in place, the designated 
teacher dealing with PSHE. 

 The BCYC are planning a select committee / inquiry day in the autumn on PHSE. Some of the planning of this 
began on 5th Feb and the young people have said that they would appreciate some future support from scrutiny 
on the planning of and the event itself.

P
age 16



1

Scope
Value for Money Review – Arena Development

Requirements from Consultancy

08/04/2017

1. The Arena Development

1.1.Bristol Arena is a proposed 12,000 capacity indoor venue, due to be located on 
the former diesel depot site (known as 'Arena Island'), near Bristol Temple Meads 
station. The site lies within Bristol Temple Quarter Enterprise Zone which is 
intended to be filled with a variety of businesses, projects and initiatives, all of which 
will feed into it becoming a new, vibrant quarter of the city. 

1.2.The Arena will be a catalyst for development in the enterprise zone, creating jobs, 
stimulating economic and business rate growth but more distinctively; it could be 
considered a game changer in creating a vibrant, mixed use entertainment and 
business destination, enabling important social benefits to be derived from the City’s 
ability to attract and enjoy a wider variety and higher quality recreation and 
entertainment options, the creation of civic pride and building a strong local identity.

2. Background and Funding

2.1.The Arena project benefits from a site in the Council’s ownership, a technical design 
(RIBA Plan of Work Stage 4), detailed planning permission and a 25 year 
operational agreement with an operator in place.  

2.2.Like many Arenas’ that have gone before and are now a success story, the Bristol 
Arena has had its challenges. The venue was originally estimated to cost £91million 
and earmarked for completion by 2018 further funding subsequently agreed in 2016 
for the wider public realm and car park and the Arena Island project was 
established; with over £123million of capital investment earmarked in the councils 
capital programme. The funding is largely funded by Bristol City Council and the 
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership.

2.3.The council entered into a Pre-Construction Services Agreement (PCSA) with 
construction firm Bouygues Uk and Target Cost scheduled to be agreed in October 
2016. Agreement was not reached and as a result the project will be subject to 
some delay.  Further costings, as part of the target cost mechanism, will now be 
commissioned from Buckingham Group via a PCSA; to firm up current costings for 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



2

the arena as currently proposed and take full advantage of value engineering 
options available. This will facilitate greater cost certainty for the project.

2.4. A conditional agreement has been entered into for the sale of the phase 2 Arena 
Island site, originally earmarked for parking; to the University of Bristol and 
alternative parking solutions are being considered for the Arena. The University 
intends to establish a Second Campus at Temple Meads. The main elements of the 
campus are a Digital Innovation Hub, New Business School and University City 
Village, purpose built student accommodation.  This will be an important anchor for 
regeneration of the TQEZ and will attract other businesses to locate in the area. 

3.  Value for money review

3.1.The original business case was supported by an economic appraisal prepared by 
AMION Consulting; however an accumulation of changes direct the need for a 
refresh of the analysis and underpinning assumptions. We are exposed to varying 
threats and opportunities from the economic and financial climate, cost plans are 
being developed, and the need to reflect the wider implications in our economic 
assessment of the proposed development of the University of Bristol second 
campus. 

3.2.  It is important to ensure public investment continues to offer value for money and 
an economic assessment produced that provides assurance for the Council that the 
future decisions on the investment can be taken in line with its duty of best value. 
The value for money review will constitute the economic case for the Arena 
investment and consider whether all of the collective impacts direct and indirect and 
associated inter dependencies delivered by the scheme represent good value for 
taxpayers’ and residents of Bristol. 

4. The Brief  

4.1. Independent Financial infrastructure advisors are required to undertake a Value for 
Money review on the Arena development; to which the associated contractual 
arrangements and cost plan in development via the PCSA process will feed in.  

4.2.Value for money in this context requires a more complex analysis than identifying 
the lowest cost or only achieving the most efficient chain of delivery.  A development 
of this scale and complexity cannot be said to offer value for money if it is not 
effective i.e. if it fails to deliver the benefits which were the justification for its 
existence in the first place and similarly, the value for money of a programme must 
be called into question if it meets its objectives at a disproportionate cost.

4.3. In regards to the achievement of economy and  efficiency, and the maintenance of 
adequate systems, practices and procedures for the purpose of evaluating 
effectiveness; the Value for Money review of  the Arena development will include the 
following:

 Identify the Arena Island objectives.

Page 18



3

 Examine the current validity of those objectives and their compatibility with the 
overall vision and priorities of Bristol City Council and the Bristol Temple 
Quarter Enterprise Zone.

 Define the outputs from all associated contracts; identify the expected level / 
trends of those deliverables, key interdependencies and intended impact on 
businesses, service users, and communities associated with the development 
activity.

 Examine the extent that the development’s objectives will be achieved, the 
risks associated and comment on the effectiveness with which progress has 
been achieved to date.

 Identify the level and trend of costs, various funding mechanisms and staffing 
resources associated with delivering this development effectively. Considering 
whether any further investment needs to be made in the delivery capacity 
being proposed and taking where possible an optimal combination of whole 
life costs to the agreed quality and timescale. It should include any start up 
and exit costs that will need to be met as well as the direct funding to 
Operators for the service.

 Asses the strength of the economic case, based on a consistent appraisal 
methodology that is in line with the principles set out in the HM Treasury 
Green Book. Identify any major gaps in the evidence base, risk that an 
element may not pass a value for money threshold and maturity of plans, 
including the extent of understanding about costs, benefits, scope, timetable 
and deliverability.

 Comment on the cost/ benefit ratios and in recognition that not all outcomes 
will be obvious, direct or easily valued; additional evaluations techniques such 
as Social Return on Investment (SROI) will also be required to establish the 
full impact of the development and its net worth; an overview should be 
provided on the efficiency with which the objectives have been achieved to 
date.

 Comment on the potential to increase benefits and reduce costs as far as 
possible, including through different interventions and options for funding and 
financing in a way that minimizes the taxpayer burden, and ensures those that 
benefit most bear a fair share of the costs.

 Evaluate the degree to which the objectives warrant the allocation of public 
funding on both an initial and ongoing basis and examine the scope for 
alternative approaches to achieving these objectives on a more efficient 
and/or effective basis.

 Specify potential future performance indicators that might be used to better 
monitor the performance of the development and ensure that the overarching 
outputs, specified milestones can be delivered on time and within the agreed 
Target Costs.

Page 19



4

4.4.A Value for Money review should not, as a general rule, recommend an increased 
resource allocation for the programme concerned. Where, in exceptional 
circumstances, you are proposing to recommend such an increase it should only be 
to deliver demonstrable better overall cashable benefits and the Mayor, Deputy 
Mayor with responsibility for Finance, Governance and Performance and the Chief 
Finance Officer must be consulted in advance and should identify possible offsetting 
measures or programmes that would be sufficient to meet the additional costs 
involved: full details of these offsetting measures would need to be included in the 
Value for Money review report.

4.5.Reporting:

 The delivery a transparent, impartial and objective report with the expectation 
that the report will be published in full subject to redaction of commercially 
sensitive material.  

 Based on the information evaluated as part of this review and stated 
limitations within that analysis a value for money  conclusion must be draw 
with clear supportive evidence and recommendations to  support the Council’s  
decision-making and to strengthen the accountability of the development 
going forward.

 Whilst not taking away from the complexity of the content the report where 
possible must be written in a format to be accessible to a general readership 
with simple ‘Red, Amber Green systems were appropriate. 

4.6.Constraints and Assumptions

 Regular progress briefings in line with the defined project pace will be 
submitted to the nominated Council officer

 In taking forward this work, the bidder will be expected to engage with relevant 
stakeholders and Senior Officers in the Bid team will retain the relationship 
lead on this and Council engagement.

  This review does not seek to assess policy or strategy.  It should be noted 
that the objective of the assessment is to comment on the evaluative process 
and methodologies, rather than on any policy recommendations set out in 
documents and reports that will form part of this review. 

5. Outputs & Performance Standards

The successful bidder will be expected to provide:

 On-going process reporting throughout, alongside representative presentations 
as required

Page 20



5

 A final report detailing as a minimum all the points outlined in the brief, and other 
relevant consideration including contractual and legal issues.  

  The above report will be required  8 (eight)  weeks from appointment with a draft 
report for comment by Council  2 (two) weeks before

 Advise in a timely manner on relevant market developments  that come to light 
during this assignment and any potential impact on the current contractual 
arrangements within the development

 Upon conclusion of the review, a handover session of all the intellectual property, 
including models, (financial or otherwise) optimized and used during this 
assignment. all written material and presentations in plain English

6. Skills and Experience Required

6.1.  The Council requires the appointed consultant to have the following 

 A good understanding of the project brief, markets, up to date understanding of 
Major Projects which deliver broad economic growth and quantifiable GVA; detail 
the specific role of the proposed team on the stated projects and contacts for the 
reference sites.

  An appropriately resourced team with all relevant experience and  skills  and 
tools  to deliver the  Council’s requirements  .Each bidder should provide the 
following 

o a two-page summary of the  proposed  team  to  be deployed on the 
project together with  a CV  for each person (maximum 2 x A4 page, font 
size 10per person), setting out their relevant  background and experience 

o the ability of the team to manage the project effectively, and to complete it 
according to the time schedule laid down by the Council cost of proposal, 
including number of charge days and daily rate per individual;

o a resource  plan which will identify  the intended   time commitment of 
each member of the proposed  team which will also  identify  both the 
overall relationship lead, which should be  the lead team member when  
working in the Council’s premises .

o Reach back capacity available to enable all the objectives outlined to be 
delivered at the appropriate quality of output.

o A progress reporting regime which will include team member’s actual time 
spent on the commission.

7. Proposals & Pricing

 The Bidder should provide their proposed approach including an indicative 
programme  which  will include  details of which members of the  proposed team  
will be  assigned to the different elements with an indication of the likely time 

Page 21



6

spent on particular elements   
 An outline of any additional scenarios that  the bidder proposes that the  Council 

could  consider with  associated rational
 The project should be priced on the basis of a fixed fee, including all expenses 

and disbursements.  
 Details of any impact on the fixed price should the Council agree to adopt any 

additional scenario(s) proposed by the bidder 
 In the event that additional work is required by the client  each bidder should set 

out, as part of its proposals, the hourly or daily rates for each staff member   
 The Council will require relevant warranties and professional indemnity limit will 

be capped at £2M overall. Employee Liability Insurance cover should be £10M 
and Public Liability Insurance should be £5M cover.

 Once appointed  any changes  in the team  cannot be made without  the 
Council’s express agreement

 The final report and all intellectual property will remain the property of Bristol City 
Council

8. Statement of Technical Requirements

 Bidders will be required to sign a non-disclosure agreement

 Bidders are required to issue a statement to provide assure they can act on 
behalf of the council, with no conflicting representation to other related parties 
on this development. Any previous engagement in this development must be 
outlined. 

 The bidder may wish to engage external specialists on specific aspects of this 
assignment; this should be clearly stated in the proposal and in that event 
there will need to be a direct duty of care to the Council. 

 Compliance with the Data Protection Act

9. Selection Criteria and Process

9.1.Procurement of the contractor will be undertaken through the Council’s procurement 
portal, and all correspondence will be managed solely through that.

The criteria for selection are:
 60% of the score will be based on the quality of the proposals
 40% of the score will be based on the price

Page 22



1

Background Briefing Note: Arena Planning Issues 

This note on planning issues has been produced to inform the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board who wish to discuss the issue of an arena for Bristol at their meeting on 8th March 2018.

1. The Proposals at Temple Quarter

1.1 Detailed planning permission was granted on 11th April 2016 for the construction of a 12,000 
capacity indoor arena at the site known as the Former Diesel Depot, Bath Road. The application 
reference is 15/06069/F and all application documents can be accessed here:  
http://planningonline.bristol.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NYGUGSDNHG100

1.2 The application was considered by the Development Control A Committee on 6th April 2016. The 
Committee had previously deferred a decision on 2nd March for officers to “provide further 
information in respect of travel planning for the development, together with additional certainty 
that work had and would continue to take place to ensure that there were satisfactory transport 
measures in place”. Once this information had been received and assessed, the application was 
brought back to DC A Committee where it was resolved that planning permission should be 
granted.

1.3 Transport mitigation and measures are secured by conditions and include the following       
measures:

 A strategy  a series of Parking Controls 
 Delivery of a  pedestrian and cycle access between the site and Three Lamps junction
 Upgrading, widening and reconstruction  of specific footways and carriageways 
 A scheme of traffic management in the local area 
 A Public Transport Strategy
 A Park and Ride Strategy A comprehensive Event Management Strategy
 A  comprehensive Travel Plan 
 Provision of a footbridge linking the site with the River Avon path 

1.4 The report to Committee considered all of the relevant planning issues, including whether the 
development of an Arena at the site was acceptable in principle. Relevant factors in support of 
the application included

 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Planning 
Authorities to make planning decisions in accordance with the development plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that development plans should 
allocate a range of suitable sites to meet the requirement for a range of uses, including 
leisure.

Page 23

http://planningonline.bristol.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NYGUGSDNHG100
http://planningonline.bristol.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=NYGUGSDNHG100


2

 Policy BCS2 of the adopted Core Strategy states that Bristol City Centre’s role as a regional 
focus will be promoted and strengthened. Development will include offices, residential, retail, 
tourism and entertainment and arts and cultural facilities. 

 Policy BCS7 of the Core Strategy states that new uses which contribute to maintaining the 
vitality, viability and diversity of centres will be encouraged.

 Policy BCAP1 of the adopted Central Area Plan stipulates that new development in Bristol 
City Centre will be expected to contribute to the mix of uses in the wider area. 

 Policy BCAP9 of the Central Area Plan requires that proposals for new cultural facilities in 
the city centre boundary will be encouraged. The policy states that a major indoor arena and 
complimentary leisure uses will be developed in Bristol Temple Quarter. 

 Policy BCAP35 states that sites within the Bristol Temple Quarter will be developed
for a wide range of uses, including:

 A major indoor arena and complementary leisure uses;
 At least 100,000 sq. m of net additional high quality office and flexible 

workspace;
 Up to 2,200 new homes, including live/work space
 Complementary retail and leisure uses
 New walking and cycle routes to connect the development to the rest of the 

city centre and
 surrounding neighbourhoods.
 Green infrastructure and public realm enhancements

  

1.5 In reaching a conclusion and recommending that planning permission should be granted, the 
following points were considered:

 The delivery of the Arena will create a major destination within the TQEZ, the city of Bristol 
and the South West Region. 

 Together, the detailed proposals for the Arena and the outline proposals for the remainder of 
Arena Island will deliver the positive regeneration of a brownfield site in the centre of the city.

 Conditions will secure a range of measures that will support the development and assist in 
the delivery of improvements to the wider area at the appropriate time.  Conditions will 
provide the necessary mitigation measures and monitoring in relation to the planning issues 
raised. The Council will be the owners and developers of the site and custodians of the area 
once the scheme is built out, that there can be confidence that this work will continue to 
completion.

2. Alternative Locations for an Arena

2.1 Alternative locations for an Arena would have to go through the same process that the Temple 
Quarter arena went through in order to obtain planning permission. Relevant guidance on the 
principle of development is provided by the National Planning Policy Framework as follows:

2.2 Under the title of “Ensuring the vitality of town centres”, at paragraph 23, the NPPF states that 
planning policies should be positive and promote town centres. The NPPF says that local 

Page 24



3

planning authorities (LPAs) should recognise town centres as the heart of their communities and 
should pursue policies to support their viability and vitality. 

2.3 The NPPF also says that LPAs should allocate sites for a variety of town centre uses
(including retail, leisure and cultural) to meet these needs and should assess whether town 
centres should be expanded to ensure that a sufficient supply of suitable sites are available. 
Appropriate edge of centre sites should be allocated that are well connected to the town centre if 
sufficient town centre sites are not available.

2.3 Paragraph 24 of the NPPF sets out that LPAs should apply a sequential test to planning 
applications for main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre. The sequential test 
requires that town centre uses should be located in town centres first, then edge of centre 
locations and then only if suitable sites are not available should out of centre sites be 
considered. The NPPF goes on to say that, when considering edge of centre and out of centre 
proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the town 
centre. .

2.4 Paragraph 26 of the NPPF states that out of town proposals should be accompanied by an 
impact assessment that considers: the impact on existing, committed and planned public and 
private investment in centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and the impact on town 
centre vitality and viability including local consumer choice and trade  the town centre.

2.5 Paragraph 27 says that, where an application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to 
have significant adverse impact, it should be refused.

2.6 Alternative proposals would also have to be assessed against Policy BCS7 of the Bristol Local 
Plan. This states that town centre uses (including leisure, entertainment, arts and culture) will be 
primarily located within or adjoining identified centres. As set out earlier in this note Policy 
BCAP9 specifically states that a “major indoor arena and complementary leisure uses will be 
developed in Bristol Temple Quarter” and this intention is repeated in Policy BCAP35. 

2.7 Alternative locations for an Arena would also have to address the same issues that were 
considered with the Temple Quarter arena, especially transport. A proposal would have to be 
accompanied by a Transport Assessment that considers the trip generation and impacts of the 
proposal in the specific locality, and would also have to set out measures to mitigate the 
impacts.     

3. Proposals at Brabazon Hanger, Filton Airfield

3.1 Planning officers are aware of interest in converting this building in order to create an Arena for 
Bristol. This site lies within the Bristol City Council administrative boundary, close to the 
boundary with South Gloucestershire, south of the former Filton Airfield. The site is currently 
designated as a Principal Industrial and Warehousing Area (PIWA) where Policies BCS8 and 
DM13 seek to retain sites in such uses.

3.2 This out of town location would have to be subjected to the sequential test set out above and 
would also need to be accompanied by a Transport Assessment that would identify measures 
required to mitigate the transport impacts.

3.3 Finally, although the building is not statutorily or even locally listed, the building is valued in the 
community and the benefits of retaining the building in use would be a material planning 
consideration. 

 

Page 25



Name of Meeting – Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
8th March 2018

Report of: Councillor Asher Craig, Deputy Mayor with responsibility for Communities (Public 
Health, Public Transport, Libraries, Parks, Events and Equalities)

Title: Update on the Review of the Library Service

Ward: City Wide

Councillor Presenting Report:  Councillor Asher Craig, 

Update on the Review of the Library Service;

1. Mutual Ventures – Alternative Delivery Models Options Appraisal

Mutual ventures report is due at the beginning of April and will give a high level options appraisal of a 
variety of Alternative Delivery Models which may be suitable for Bristol. This is very early work that may 
lead to a business case and then a business plan. The report will be considered by Cllr Craig and the 
Executive initially and then passed for discussion to the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group. This will be an 
internal document and not published.

2. Community Offer

In parallel, the libraries service is examining more detailed community offers for libraries not in the core 
statutory service. This takes into consideration the feedback in the consultation Your Neighbourhoods, 
the work of the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group, feedback from the Executive.

3. Timescales

There is no current cabinet date or timeline. We are aiming to go to cabinet with a proposal Summer 
2018 (June – Sept). However this depends on agreement on the proposal and financing and advice from 
Legal on whether re consultation is necessary. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



Review of Scrutiny Ways of Working March 2018 –Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
Meeting

8th March 2018

Report of: Service Manager, Democratic Engagement

Title: Outcomes of the Scrutiny Workshop and Proposed Model

Ward: Citywide

Officer Presenting Report:   Andrea Dell

Contact Telephone Number:  

1. Recommendations

a) That members consider the findings of the Scrutiny Ways of Working Workshop (para 5).

b) That members discuss the proposed model that has been developed from the discussions at the 
workshop, and agree a way forward (para 5.2).

c) That members consider and comment on the issues raised regarding planning of the Scrutiny 
Work Programme (para 5.3) and agree that these be taken forward to inform the future 
development of the work programme.

2. Summary

On February 22nd 2018 a workshop was held for members to review the current ways of working, and to 
consider and develop options for the future scrutiny structure (Workshop programme attached at 
Appendix A).  

All members were invited to attend the workshop.  21 members attended (List of Attendance attached at 
Appendix B).

At the workshop, members were invited to reassess key principles to underpin scrutiny activity, and were 
asked to consider the optimum balance of different types of scrutiny activity for a future hybrid model. 

The outcomes of the workshop are set out in Section 5.

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



Review of Scrutiny Ways of Working March 2018 –Report

3. Policy

Bristol City Council is required to establish an Overview and Scrutiny function and discharge its duties 
in accordance with the following legislation - Local Government Act 2000, Health and Social Care Act 
2001, NHS Act 2006, Police and Justice Act 2006, Flood and Water Management Act 2010, Localism Act 
2011, Health and Social Care Act 2012.

4. Context

From September 2017, a new scrutiny system has been trialled in response to cross-party member 
feedback that scrutiny was not delivering effective scrutiny, quality outcomes, nor making the best use 
of resources including councillor time. 

The member-led trial of the new system has moved away from the previous departmentally aligned 
scrutiny commissions towards more informal and flexible ways of working, with OSMB commissioning 
a number of task and finish groups according to agreed work programme priorities.  

When the new ways of working were agreed by members, a commitment was given that a review 
would be carried out in February 2018 to gauge members’ views, to assess progress, and to 
collectively determine a way forward.  It was agreed that this would be done by means of a workshop.

At its meeting on 12th February, ahead of the workshop, OSMB considered potential models for a 
future scrutiny structure and expressed a preference for a hybrid model consisting of a mix of formal 
meetings and working groups.  It was agreed that the focus of the workshop should be on further 
discussion to determine the optimum balance between the different types of scrutiny. 

The workshop was held on February 22nd, and was therefore to help enable members to review the 
current ways of working and to consider options for the future scrutiny structure. 

5. Outcomes of the Workshop

The workshop consisted of three sessions – the main outputs of these are as set out below.  The 
outputs of the individual groups for each session can be found at Appendix C.

5.1  Session One – Future Key Principles 

At the first session in the workshop, members discussed the guiding principles that could underpin a 
future scrutiny model.  The outcome of this session is attached at Appendix D. 

5.2 Session Two –  Hybrid Scrutiny Model

Members used this session to define what the balance of scrutiny activity should be within a scrutiny 
model encompassing both formal public scrutiny meetings and informal working groups. 

There was a general consensus of the majority of members present that a model based on 
departmental structure was the preferred option, and that the split of scrutiny activity needed to be 

Page 28



Review of Scrutiny Ways of Working March 2018 –Report

shifted away from an 80/20 split in favour of formal meetings, to include more capacity for informal 
working, i.e. more like an 60/40 balance.
 
The proposed model is therefore as follows;

OSMB

 5 meetings per year
 Responsibility includes Corporate Risk Register and Performance
 Responsibility for overall scrutiny work programme
 1 Budget/ MTFP related Working Group
 Responsibility for commissioning working groups (or select committees, task groups, 

inquiry days)**
Growth & Regeneration 

Scrutiny Commission
Communities Scrutiny 

Commission
Care & Safeguarding Scrutiny 

Commission
 3 meetings per year  3 meetings per year  3 meetings per year

 2 meetings of Health 
Sub-committee (carries 
out the statutory health 
scrutiny function and 
could include the 
statutory Joint Health 
Scrutiny function)***

Key features:

 16 formal meetings 
 Up to 6 working groups over the course of the year (including Budget/MTFP) 
 Mechanisms included for Children and Safeguarding and Education issues (via Care & 

Safeguarding Committee)
 Regular public scrutiny 
 Formal public scrutiny shared between four commissions including responsibility for 

health, not solely with OSMB

5.2.1  Risks and Mitigations

 Risk: Balance of work between the four committees may be wrong.  Mitigation: If this model was 
adopted, the 4 chairs would need to monitor the balance of work.  It is important to bear in 
mind that a new departmental structure will impact on Council departments as well as scrutiny, 
and scrutiny chairs will need to reassess progress against the scrutiny work programme to 
ensure that the balance of meetings matches the requirements of the workload.    

 Risk: Overloaded agendas: could be a temptation for committees to try and cover all services 
within each department resulting in overloaded agendas and subsequent superficial scrutiny. 
Mitigation: Committees will need to exercise self-restraint and prioritise areas for focus  

 Risk: Silo working: could result in the focus of scrutiny being shifted from the Executive and onto 
officers. Mitigation: Regular attendance and involvement from Cabinet Members.

Page 29



Review of Scrutiny Ways of Working March 2018 –Report

5.2.2 Issues for further consideration

 There are a number of items which scrutiny either has a statutory duty to scrutinise, or that it is 
highly recommended be retained within any future work programme.  This list was provided to 
the workshop and is attached at Appendix E.

 The number of working groups running at any one time will depend very much on a number of 
factors such as a) officer capacity, b) the topic under consideration (i.e. intensity required, long 
term topic or short, sharp, deep dive), c. timing i.e. is the group working to a specific timeframe 
(would it be better for start to be delayed to coincide with other workstreams).

 ***The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) resource issue remains 
unresolved. Bristol is committed to host 1 of 3 meetings per year on a rotating basis between 
the three local authorities.  Consideration could be given to the JHOSC being placed under the 
remit of the Care & Safeguarding Scrutiny Commission – this requires further discussion.

 Although OSMB would retain overall control of the Scrutiny Work Programme, the 
Commission/Working Group chairs should have more of a role in managing priorities and this 
would be best enabled through regular informal meetings (i.e. ‘Leads meetings’).  The existing 
arrangement of Scrutiny Commission/Working Group chairs sitting on OSMB should be 
continued. 

 **There does not appear to be a member consensus as to whether working groups should be 
commissioned by OSMB or by each Commission – this requires further discussion.

 The situation regarding remuneration for Scrutiny Commission/Working Groups Chairs/Vice 
Chairs needs to be considered by the Independent Remuneration Panel once the final Scrutiny 
structure has been agreed. 

 Members have an important role in keeping a ‘watching brief’ on relevant areas, but Scrutiny 
should not be used as a way of briefing Members thus taking up valuable time in meetings and 
often excluding other Members who could be interested.

 Any future Working Groups should be carefully planned before commencement so that the 
objectives and timetable were clear; only those that had a tight remit and purpose should be 
taken forward with other topics taking an alternative route.  

 Monitoring the performance of the Council is an important function of Scrutiny and therefore 
additional consideration should be given to the best approach to this, given that this would form 
part of the remit of OSMB (including the selection of Key Performance Indicators etc). OSMB 
leads have previously recommended a workshop specifically to review this area.

5.3 Session Three – Planning for the Work Programme

The purpose of this session was for members to think ahead to the development of the scrutiny work 
programme - how best to approach this and what the potential sources of information could be.  A 
range of proposals were put forward including the following key suggestions:

 Senior departmental officers should provide information at the work programme session: i.e.  
details of the ongoing workstreams in departments; areas where officers would 
welcome/require scrutiny input; work coming up in near/longer term; areas where performance 
is a concern; what officers consider to be the department’s priorities/challenges.

 It is vitally important to define success measures/outcomes of scrutiny items (especially working 
groups) at the time of setting the work programme and if these are found to be unclear,  
members should be prepared to reject them as scrutiny topics.

Page 30



Review of Scrutiny Ways of Working March 2018 –Report

 KPIs are critical when setting the work programme - members should focus on those that are red 
and also on where the council does badly with regard to value for money - this latter should be a 
major red flag for scrutiny.

 We need to incorporate external sources of information and views into the setting of the work 
programme eg. ask the “Voice” groups for their suggestions for scrutiny priorities and feed these 
into the work programme setting process.

 A process to funnel and/or filter potential items and understand where scrutiny can and cannot 
have an impact or add value was seen as important.  Similarly, a criterion, which must be met to 
aid decision making, was also suggested a number of times.

 Cabinet Members involvement and input was seen as essential when Members are considering 
populating the work programme – especially ‘horizon-scanning’ type items.

6. Proposed Next Steps

If the decision is taken by OSMB to change the structure of Scrutiny then the amendments would 
ideally be taken forward as part of the review of the constitution that is likely to be considered at the 
annual Full Council meeting in May 2018.  

Appendices:

Appendix A – Programme for Scrutiny Workshop 

Appendix B – List of Attendance

Appendix C – Notes from Workshop Tables  

Appendix D – Future Key Principles

Appendix E – List of Statutory/Recommended Items

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers:  OSMB meeting papers for 12th February 2018

Page 31

https://bristolintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=165&MId=2755&Ver=4


Scrutiny Workshop: Ways of Working 

Thursday 22nd February 2018

PROGRAMME

Time Purpose of Session Who/how

10.00am Introduction Chair of OSMB

10.10am Session one:  Future key principles
 

 Discuss / agree the key principles for future scrutiny 
working groups 

 Discuss / agree the key principles for future scrutiny 
commission meetings 

Everyone working as one 
large group, facilitated by 
Scrutiny Team

10.50am Session Two: A hybrid scrutiny model? 

Getting the right ‘balance’ – what should it look like? 

Bearing in mind:  
 Methods of scrutiny – meetings, deep-dives, inquiry 

days
 Types of scrutiny – horizon scanning / policy 

development, Pre-decision scrutiny, Post-decision 
scrutiny, use of call-in

Examples of scrutiny models to be provided

Members to work in small 
groups facilitated by 
Scrutiny Team

11.50am BREAK

12.00pm Session Three:  Sourcing priorities for the work programme 

Considerations:
 How the Council works today
 Identifying scrutiny priorities / items
 Statutory requirements  (list to be provided)
 Setting the work programme 

Everyone back together 
as one group.

Andrea Dell (Service 
Manager Policy, Scrutiny 
& Executive Office) 

12.35pm Wrap Up
 Summary 

Chair of OSMB

12.45pm END

Appendix A

Page 32



Scrutiny Workshop: Ways of Working 

Thursday 22nd February 2018

Record of Councillor Attendance (final)

1 Geoff Gollop Cons
2 Eleanor Combley Green
3 Cleo Lake Green
4 Jo Sergeant Lab
5 Charlie Bolton Green
6 Donald Alexander Lab
7 Clive Stephens Green
8 Ruth Pickersgill Lab
9 Jude English Green
10 Brenda Massey Lab
11 Harriet Clough LD
12 Tom Brook Lab
13 Tony Carey Cons
14 Olly Mead Lab
15 Chris Jackson Lab
16 Anthony Negus LD
17 Celia Phipps Lab
18 Martin Fodor Green
19 Mark Weston Cons
20 Stephen Clarke Green
21 Matt Melias Cons

Appendix B

Page 33



1

Scrutiny Workshop: Ways of Working 

Thursday 22nd February 2018

Workshop Tables – Session Notes

Table 1 

Session One 

Commission meetings 

 Re: Work programme setting – OSMB having control – is this a “safeguard” against chairs 
veering off course?

 Re: Agenda planning meetings – critical to plan outcomes, plan questioning, arrange 
continuation between meetings to ensure the line of questioning continues on a given 
topic.

 Importance of engaging the right officer for a particular issue to ensure that the right 
information is provided.

 Alternative arrangement for selecting chairs? Could this be agreed by members within 
their political party – not just by whips?   

Working Groups

 Chairs could be elected by the Working Group once membership has been decided.
 Collective agreement re: when meetings are scheduled.
 Investigate different digital methods of meeting or working eg. site visits, Skype/digital 

conferencing
 Criteria for topic selection need to be clear BUT also open-ended enough to allow further 

refinement/focus.
 Balance between people having their say and dominating the discussion – needs to be the 

right balance to ensure we make maximum use of time (this applies to Commissions as 
well).

 Use members with specific skills/interests to find out/research specific areas and report 
back (this applies to Commissions as well).

 Chairs need to be able to lead/manage BUT also need a check/balance on this.
 Methods of communication need to address the issue of less resources eg. making better 

use of Alfresco to display relevant information (NB. Mod.gov is not popular).
 Need to be very clear about outcomes.
 Topic selection – all members need to have the opportunity to put topics forward, but 

subsequent to this, clear criteria is needed for selection – this should include the 
requirement to  focus down on which part of the topic is relevant and what the possible 
outcomes could look like. 

Appendix C

Page 34



2

 Need to ask Cabinet members what their priorities are and what they need help with or 
what they would like Scrutiny to focus on.

Session Two

 Working Groups should be reporting back to Commissions and not to OSMB.
 Working Groups should be established in consultation with chairs of all commissions in 

order that any cross-cutting issues are picked up and incorporated into the scope of the 
working group,  where appropriate.

 Agreed that working groups do not have to be politically proportionate (although need to 
be mindful of the political makeup i.e. a single party working group is not desirable).  No 
requirement for pol prop means that groups can attract people with interest/relevant 
skills.

 Important that working groups can operate informally i.e. without bureaucracy.
 Agreed that the departmental model (Sample 3) was preferred as this model is the most 

logical and the clearest, but with a 60/40 split (i.e.60% commission meetings) – therefore 
we need to reduce the number of formal commission meetings.  Also agreed that the 
MTFP/Budget group should become a Finance sub-committee of OSM (with the chair 
receiving a SRA), and OSM should deal with Resources issues thereby taking on the 2x 
Resources meetings (so OSM would have 6 meetings).

Session Three – Sourcing Priorities for the Work Programme 

 Possible ‘pipeline’ for potential items for the work programme
 Members could be encouraged to lobby for items 
 It’s important to identify what’s working / where are we failing as a council
 A process is needed or criteria developed to help decision making – criteria must be met
 Suggestion of a monthly Leads Meeting at which Chairs of groups and commissions feed 

ideas / suggestions into 
o Should potential items have to show they meet the criteria /check list before they 

get to a Leads Meeting 
Or 

o Should members just be asked to make a case for items to be added? 

 Suggestion of just inviting Cabinet Members to OSMB to provide information about what 
they are currently doing and what they will be doing in the next year or so – to help 
selection of topics

 Or invite Cabinet Members to an event – either way their input was seen as essential 
 Cabinet Members key performance indicators – use these to identify issues 
 Cabinet Members at scrutiny meetings for Q&As 

Page 35



3

 Perhaps shouldn’t fully populate the work programme – instead leave some space for 
future unknown items

 Participants were divided about if they thought an event was a good idea  

Page 36



4

Table 2 Session Notes

Session 1 Future Key Principles

Working / Task and Finish Groups: 
 Members said it was difficult to agree on the allocation of resources for something that 

hadn’t yet been defined –don’t yet know how big or small the projects will be.

 It was suggested that a feasibility phase could be undertaken to enable OSMB to determine 
the viability of the topic before any work commences.  Feasibility stage would encompass 
the following points:
 
 Scopes
- Well-defined parameters aims and objectives
- Agreed by OSMB

 Scheduling and timing are crucial and must be checked 
before initiating work

 Clear criteria for topic selection 

 Acknowledged that it’s not always possible to set dates for group working far in advance i.e. 
we can’t always predict when relevant information will be available. Has meant it’s been 
difficult for some members to engage the process of group working. 

 Acknowledgement that the current trial has been taking place whilst there’s been an 
organisational re-design taking place within the council.  This has caused some additional 
difficulties with some groups.

 Member development needs – members still feel they’d like to highlight learning needs.  Not 
had the chance since induction sessions 

 Add ‘agreed senior officer involvement’ to working group guiding principles (as well as 
commission meetings).  

 Agreed protocol regarding Cabinet Member involvement –suggested that each individual 
group should decide depending on the topic

 The policy/report/outcomes ‘cycle’ or process for scrutiny recommendations should be made 
more explicit.  

 General consensus on the tabled ‘guiding principles ‘ for group-working

Scrutiny Commissions

 Chair selection:
o Whips need to be aware of the views of other group members with regards to the 

choice of future chairs 

Page 37



5

o There was interest in the recommendation from the Parliamentary Select 
Committee regarding trial of secret ballots for choosing commission chairs 

 Public Engagement – as a separate subject needs requires further discussion. 
 ‘Update Reports’ should also be ‘information only’ reports i.e.  published in papers but not 

take up precious meeting time
 General agreement about widening the invitation to planning meetings
 Add a point to the list that says briefing should be separated from commission meetings.  

Anything that resembles a briefing should be removed from the agendas.  
 Could the KPI Reports be for ‘information purposes only’ and only concerns raised when 

required?
 Pre-scrutiny briefings – request that they are part of a member induction process.
 General briefings – Members would like officers to explain the ‘what /why/ & why 

now’s’ (basic information) when they send notification. 

General consensus on the tabled guiding principles for scrutiny commissions

Table 2 - Session 2:  A hybrid scrutiny model?

 Suggestion that scrutiny is divided between 3 types OSMB / Overview / Working groups
 Members undecided  if working groups should stem from OSMB or the commissions 
 Suggestion that cross-cutting subjects should be always be considered for joint working 

between commissions or working groups.
 Concerns raised again about commission chairs politicising positon and whips role in 

assuring the right people were selected.
 Majority of table in favour of the Departmental Mode.  The split should not however be 

tilted so much in favour of commission and should be rebalanced to 70 /30 or 60/40 (80/20 
was deemed to be too far).

Table 2 – Session 3 -Sourcing Priories for the Scrutiny Work Programme

 Members stressed the importance of scheduling the work programme in terms of short 
term, medium term and long term considerations

 Importance of identifying cross cutting themes
 Importance of understanding the remit of the directorates
 What do council services look like to real people- how do we know – what can we do about 

it
 The need for Cllrs to be informed before engaging the public 
 How was the work reflecting the voice of the public
 Importance of balancing needs of the individual over needs of the city or a wider group
 Importance of a process to funnel items and understand where scrutiny can and cannot 

have an impact or add value
 There was a role to make the Council better for citizens who need to interact with the 

Council e.g. is Full Council the only or last resort for people in the form of protest?
 What is the one city plan? Communicating that better
 Start by populating the work programme with the statutory items and then consider the 

issues and allow some flexibility for emerging items

Page 38



6

 Look for big items like recommissioning of services 
 Avoid duplication – is the subject being considered elsewhere
 Some members felt that OSMB should have a strategic overview function which requires 

different skills to commission function and should focus on the corporate view
 Some members felt that a strict hierarchy could waste precious time micro managing 

whilst others felt that it was important that Commissions did not veer off course
 Some agreement that commission chairs attend OSMB planning for consensus/agreement 

around new agenda items or working groups but concern that timing may be an issue
 Process for funnelling should include suggestion with justification and desired outcome 

into a ranking system
 Cllrs need to understand what has gone before as not to duplicate work of previous years
 Need list of services along with recommendations from Directorates, quality of life surveys
 Agree work programme setting should involve an information session followed by 

discussion in political groups, political groups feed in priorities with justification and 
desired outcome and system for monitoring scrutiny recommendations

 Induction could be programmed to Committees Cllrs are on or give them the option to 
choose – couple of months of learning before scrutiny work programming

 Need Cllr development as a complimentary/parallel programme – to understand what to 
do and how to do it

 Scrutiny councillor development important 

Page 39



7

Table 3 – Session notes

Session One – Key Principles

Working Groups

 Chairs
- should not necessarily steer the work of the group 
- be responsible for Agenda management
- have Good communication with officers to facilitate and ensure understanding and focus 

of the group
- Must want to Chair the group
- Must be able to Chair in respect of skills and availability
- Should know the subject matter or be willing to research the topic
- Must have experience or have access to training

 Membership 
- Should incorporate a system of nominated substitutes (to take account of a range of 

personal circumstances including health issues)

 Scheduling and timing 
- Should have flexibility to allow for recurring groups eg MTFP/Budget
- Should have a process for activating and deactivating groups when workflow dictates

 Attendance
- Invite Cabinet Members to all meetings in an advisor/observation role
- Be clear when Cabinet members attendance is required or optional
- Not passive attendance use opportunity for Cabinet members to take actions away

 Communication
- Group members should be proactive in liaising and engaging with their political groups to 

ensure that the groups’ views are represented and the groups are kept informed 

 Accessibility 
- The Status of the meeting can affect members ability to attend a meeting particularly in 

respect of members who require taxis for medical reasons or disability – may require a 
change in the constitution

Commission Meetings 

 Chairing: 
- facilitating members to express their opinions, consensus building and have a role of 

summing up, confirming agreed outcomes 
- Agenda management
- Good communication with officers to facilitate and ensure understanding and focus of the 

meeting
- Must want to Chair the meeting and commission
- Must be able to Chair in respect of skills and availability
- Should know the subject matter or be willing to research the topic

Page 40



8

- Must have experience or have access to training

 Dates and frequency 
- - achieve consensus around balance of evening and daytime meetings
- - awareness of timetabling so cllrs/officers do not have 16hr days

 Meeting papers 
- should not be larger than capacity manageable in mod.gov circa 200 pages, is there a way 

to reduce size of documents.  Must give consideration to accessibility.  Complications on 
iPad where there is constant shifting between portrait and landscape.  Try to maintain a 
consistent and accessible format. 

- Important to circulate papers as soon as possible to give Cllrs the time needed to prepare 
- Officers to give more consideration to report layout – e.g. planning reports- photographs 

can be too small
- Use of Appendices to capture very technical information instead of within reports
- Use of web links or web addresses to allow members to link to other policy documents or 

web based information rather than within reports
- Reports and Slide decks must be circulated in advance of the meeting so that accessible 

from iPad.  Large screen presentations not always accessible to all members depending on 
the meeting space, room layout, font etc.

- Important for officers to be prepared to engage in Q&A, for scrutiny and discussion not just 
present reports 

 Agenda Planning Meetings 
- more need for draft papers at this stage to engage properly
- open invitation to all members welcome or mechanism to feed in ideas, concern that 

proportionality may reduce the influence of the leads
- more use of technology such as Skype Business or Lync to enable remote access 

communications 

 Cabinet Member involvement 
- Acknowledge everyone’s time is equally precious
- More flexibility – use Lync technology to advise officers/Cabinet members when actually 

needed in the meeting 

 Technology
- Makes sense to make more use of technology including video
- Explore/Pursue video access in meeting rooms
- Explore/Pursue Skype for Business for ipads
- Ensure that skype is able to ‘talk’ to Lync, which would increase accessibility and 

engagement  eg around childcare, health, availability, substitutes
- design protocol for remote access to exempt meetings – involving a level of trust Cllr 

discretion 

 Committee Rooms
- Lighting is terrible  - too dim in most cases – please do something to address
- Book appropriate rooms for the membership access requirements eg are there 2 

wheelchair users – think about the space

Page 41



9

Session Two – a Hybrid Scrutiny model

 Departmental Alignment agreed as preferred model 
 More likely to get the right officers in the room 
 More clarity around remits
 Commission members build expertise in a subject matter
 some members were concerned more meetings required and wanted flexibility for 

planning extra meetings if and when required
 task and finish a good model for junior cllrs to get feet wet, gain knowledge and experience 

in an informal setting, concern that senior cllrs tend to take a lead in public meetings
 Care and Safeguarding not as suited to task and finish
 Agreed health needed more prominence
 Concern that things could still fall through the gaps
 Type: Ideal to focus on horizon scanning and policy development.  Engaging early enough 

to ask the awkward questions that will make the greatest influence/impact.  
 Not as useful to focus on Cabinet decisions, which may not be the priority for scrutiny 

activity
 Role of good scrutiny: focus on critical friend role and making an impact on delivery of 

public services

Balance of Scrutiny ActivityModel
OSMB Formal

Meetings
Informal

working Groups
%Split

Departmental Alignment 4 meetings 18 meetings 5 groups 80%-20%

Session Three – Sourcing Priorities/Work Programme

1. Technical information and statutory changes to be fed in by officers
2. Review of regular/standing items – all needed? Some items can be dealt with by briefings
3. Topics prioritised by a small group ie OSMB but topics sourced from a wider pool of 

members
4. Cabinet members can make suggestions
5. Topics can be sourced from external partners but not general public
6. Officer input welcome – but over control should be avoided
7. Balance between having enough information and member’s selection process
8. Councillors could support officers by keeping a watching brief
9. Pre-briefing materials needed before picking topics not at the session
10. Flex to add things – keep space on each agenda – plan at planning meeting.  50% long term 

items, 50% last minute.
11. Short updates to be used more but not updates for the sake of it
12. Define Key Lines of Inquiry – what is it?, why is it coming?, how can scrutiny contribute?
13. Reports in plain English/accessible/avoid jargon.  Quality varies – need standardised 

formatting.  Not all accessible currently.  Need better templates.  Report length an issue – 
wastes time.

14. Briefing notes and reports are different
15. Pictures need to be high resolution 

Page 42



10

Table 4 – Session notes

Session One 

Working / Task & Finish Groups

 Chairing – training would be beneficial.  Consideration of a fair way to allocate SRA’s is a 
matter for the independent remuneration panel.   

 Agendas – forward Plan needed.  Need to set a good work programme initially 
 Decision pathway must work 
 Need to keep watch on WECA’s forward plan too
 Meeting papers – agree that published information reports shouldn’t be discussed at the 

meeting.  
 Could the use of skype-type technology be used more widely? 
 Table didn’t agree on the point about an open invitation to planning meetings 

Commission Meetings 

 Training for Chairs would be beneficial 
 Membership, agree about continuity & whips allocating.  
 Proportionality of groups – mixed views about this point.  Seven members is a good guide 

but shouldn’t be fixed. Could also be a minimum of four i.e. one from group – skills are 
vital.  

 Scopes – agree. Have a feasibility stage and OSMB sign-off (flexibility is good to a degree 
but must avoid mission-creep).

 Timing point – agreed. 
 Topics – need to focus on the question-in-hand and suggestions should come from the 

commissions but is for OSMB to allocate the work.  
 Try not to do things too far in advance.  
 Agreed - protocol for Cabinet Members 
 Public involvement is up to the chairs discretion
 Meetings without officers are ok

Session Two

 Option 5: No - is too briefing orientated 
 Option 1: No - we need areas of focus 
 Option 3: Yes - Departmental alignment. Could have more than 1 department within a 

commission (would allow more T&F time).
 T&Fs – crosscutting topics / work – so commission work is more focussed 

Page 43



11

Session Three   

 Forward Plan should to an extent determine the work of the Commissions.  However it is 
acknowledges that lots of items will not be on it.

 Need information from officers at the workshop session: list on ongoing workstreams in 
departments; areas where officers require scrutiny input; work coming up in near/longer 
term; areas where performance is a concern; what officers consider to be the 
department’s priorities/challenges

 Important to define success measures/ outcomes of scrutiny items (especially working 
groups) at the time of setting the work programme and if these are unclear to be 
prepared to reject them as scrutiny topics.

 KPIs are critical when setting work programme - members should focus on the red ones 
and also on where the council does badly re: VFM – this latter should be a major red flag 
for scrutiny.

 We need to incorporate external sources of information and views into the setting of the 
work programme eg. ask the “Voice” groups for their suggestions for scrutiny priorities and 
feed these into the work programme setting process.

Page 44



1

Guiding Principles for Future Scrutiny 

A.  Working Groups / Task and Finish Groups

1. Chairing
- Leadership and responsibility for motivating and steering the work of the group 

to achieve the agreed goals  

2. Membership 
- Reduced group membership numbers (max seven) and agreed by whips
- Continuity of membership and attendance

3. Scopes
- Well-defined parameters aims and objectives
- Agreed by OSMB

4. Scheduling and timing are crucial and must be checked before initiating work

5. Clear criteria for topic selection 

6. Groups to individually agree protocol for Cabinet Member involvement 

7. Prior agreement of senior officer involvement

8. Group members take responsibility for ensuring their political groups are informed 

9. All meetings are routed through scrutiny officers

10.  Clear lines of reporting and accountability to OSMB

Appendix D

Page 45



2

B.  Commission Meetings 

1. Chairing: 
- Ensuring the commission works collaboratively
- Takes responsibility for motivating and guiding the work of the commission 

to achieve its objectives  

2. Membership
 - fixed and pre-agreed (by whips) 

3. Work programme setting 
- One scrutiny work programme managed and overseen by OSMB 
- Selection criteria for topics 

4. Dates and frequency TBC
- Pre-arranged well in advance

5. Agendas 
- planned well-in-advance 
- themed where possible

6. Meeting papers 
- Reports kept concise with very technical information put into appendices
- Minimise the use of presentations (allow short slide deck only if 

accompanied by a written report)
- Information only reports – to be published in papers but not take up 

precious meeting time
- Member briefings must be separate

7. Agenda Planning Meetings 
- agreed format  
- potential open invitation to all members (may require further discussion)
- planned lines of enquiry (improving the quality of the questioning)
- determining desired outcomes from each agenda item 

8. Agreed senior officer involvement 

Page 46



Statutory and Highly Recommended Areas for Scrutiny 

A. Statutory requirements in relation to scrutiny: 

There are a number of items which scrutiny either has A. a statutory duty to scrutinise, or B. that it 
is highly recommended to be retained within any future work programme.  

Statutory Topics Activity

Health Scrutiny - previously the remit of the People Scrutiny 
Commission - often referred to as the Health and 
Overview Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (JHOSC) 
NEW as of May 2017

- Health bodies have a duty to consult Health Scrutiny 
Commissions on proposals to substantially vary or 
develop the health service. If the proposal affects more 
than one Local Authority area a Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee is legally required.

Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder - This function was previously the remit of the 
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Commission.

Scrutiny of Flood Risk - previously the remit of Place Scrutiny Commission

Education - Scrutiny Commissions that cover Education are 
required to co-opt from governing bodies, which 
includes parent-governor and diocesan representation 
in respect of voluntary aided faith schools. (previously 
the remit of the People Scrutiny Commission)

Appendix E

Page 47



B. Highly Recommended Areas for Scrutiny

It is highly recommended that regular scrutiny or a watching brief is maintained on a number of 
discretionary topics previously considered by Scrutiny Commissions:

Discretionary Topics Possible Activity

Care and Support – Adults - Scrutinise the Annual Safeguarding Adult’s Report

Care and Support - Children and 
Families

- Scrutinise the Annual Safeguarding Children's Report 

Education and Skills - Scrutinise Annual Education Performance – All Key Stages
- Scrutinise The Learning City Board work programme 

Health Scrutiny - Scrutinise The Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 
- Scrutinise Health Providers - Quality Account Reports

Corporate Strategy, Budget and 
the Medium Term Financial Plan

- Scrutinise and oversight of the Council’s financial governance 
processes and budgets. 

- Monitor and scrutinise the implementation of Budget 
proposals

Corporate Risk Register - Scrutinise and investigate underlying causes of serious risks 
and oversight of mitigation implementation

Performance - Negotiate and agree KPIs with Mayor and Executive to 
monitor and scrutinise performance of MTFP, Corporate 
Strategy and Executive priorities

Previous Scrutiny 
Reports/Recommendations

- Monitor progress/outcomes of Scrutiny activity e.g. School 
Admissions, Libraries

Companies - Monitor and scrutinise shareholder group decisions, annual 
business plans, governance 

Issues of public interest/ concern/ 
relevance/ impact

- Monitor and scrutinise Arena, Metrobus, Temple Meads, JSP, 
Clean Air Action Plan, Health and Social Care integration 

Mayor’s Forward Plan - Monitor and scrutinise impending key decisions

Page 48



1

Meeting in Common 
South Gloucestershire Health Scrutiny Committee 

 Bristol City People Scrutiny Commission

Tuesday, 30th January, 2018
Held at the Civic Centre, Kingswood

Present for South Gloucestershire:

Councillors: Marian Lewis (Chair), Kaye Barrett, April Begley, David Chubb, 
Robert Griffin, Shirley Holloway, Sue Hope, Trevor Jones, Sarah Pomfret and 
Ian Scott

In Attendance: Claire Rees (H&WB Partnership Officer) and Gill Sinclair (Deputy to 
the Head of Legal, Governance & Democratic Services)

Present for Bristol City:

Councillors: Brenda Massey (Vice-Chair), Tony Carey, Eleanor Combley, Celia 
Phipps and Liz Radford

In Attendance: Louise de Cordova (Scrutiny Advisor)

Others in Attendance:

University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust: Robert Woolley (Chief 
Executive), Carolyn Mills (Chief Nurse) and Ian Barrington (Divisional Director, 
Bristol Royal Hospital for Children)

Apologies for Absence:

South Gloucestershire Councillors: Janet Biggin (replaced by Trevor Jones), Keith 
Burchell, Katherine Morris and Gloria Stephen

Bristol City Councillors: Mark Brain, Clare Campion-Smith, Gill Kirk, Cleo Lake and 
Ruth Pickersgill 
83 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS (Agenda Item 1)

In accordance with previously agreed arrangements, Cllr Marian Lewis 
(South Glos) took the Chair and Cllr Brenda Massey (Bristol) acted as Vice-
Chair.

Page 49

Agenda Item 11



2

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the roles and 
responsibilities of health scrutiny and the arrangements for holding a 
meeting in common.

84 EVACUATION PROCEDURE (Agenda Item 3)

The Chair drew attention to the evacuation procedure.

85 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011  
(Agenda Item 4)

There were no declarations of interest. 

86 SUBMISSIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (Agenda Item 5)

The meeting received two submissions from the public, as follows:

 Allyn Condon
 Kelly Marlow (not present)

(Details would be added to the South Glos Table of Public Submissions for 
review.)

In addition, the meeting noted 114 submissions relating to matters on the 
agenda, which had previously been received by the Bristol Overview & 
Scrutiny Management Board on 1st November 2017 and referred to this 
meeting.

87 ITEMS FROM MEMBERS (Agenda Item 6)

There were no items from Members.

MEETING APPROACH
The Chair reminded Members that, as a 12 month review since the last 
meeting in common, the purpose of today was to receive an update on the 
progress of University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust (UHBristol) in 
implementing recommendations set out within, firstly,  independent reviews 
of children’s cardiac services at the Bristol Royal Hospital for Children and, 
secondly, an independent investigation into the management response to 
allegations about staff behaviours related to the death of a baby at the 
Children’s Hospital. Cllr Lewis invited Mr Woolley and colleagues from the 
Trust to present their reports.

88 INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CARDIAC SURGICAL 
SERVICES AT BRISTOL ROYAL HOSPITAL FOR CHILDREN (Agenda 
Item 7)

Carolyn Mills (UHBristol) presented the report of the Trust which gave a 
summary of the work undertaken to date in relation to recommendations 
made by an Independent Review and CQC report. She gave information on 

Page 50



3

key milestones and identified actions and learning that had been taken 
forward throughout the organisation.

Ms Mills paid tribute to the families and the children and young people who 
had taken part in the Trust’s work to effect change and improve the way it 
listened to patients and their families, particularly by participating in the 
Steering Group overseeing delivery of recommendations. The Trust believed 
it had fully evidenced what it had achieved, and in some cases surpassed, in 
terms of the recommendations. It had been a challenging year but there had 
been learning in line with the spirit of the recommendations and this would 
continue after the action plan was complete.

Ian Barrington (UHBristol) added that the Cardiac Services review group 
also had regular reviews and sought continual improvement.

 Patient information leaflets were available on the Trust’s website; they 
had been revised to take account of feedback from patients and 
families

 Contact had been made with the Cardiac network in Wales and  
communication had improved

 The website now also included information on palliative care
 Improvements to the website had been tested to obtain feedback, for 

example at Ward coffee mornings
 There was recognition that families would need different support and 

information depending on their views and circumstances
 Reporting of patient safety incidents had been broadened through 

training with the aim of achieving consistency in reporting by staff
 Although the option to record conversations had been implemented, 

there had not been a great take up of this option
 Benchmarking had involved surveys with and visits to other paediatric 

cardiac centres and useful information had emerged, notably 
regarding the satisfactory number of staff involved in outpatient clinics 
and in the identifying the low number of cardiac specialists and 
psychology support being provided

 The Children’s Quality Assurance Committee was a sub-committee of 
the Divisional Board and had a remit for overseeing improvement 
actions arising out of the benchmarking exercises

The report of the Trust and information provided as above, was noted.
89 INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION INTO THE MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

TO ALLEGATIONS ABOUT STAFF BEHAVIOURS RELATED TO THE 
DEATH OF A BABY AT BRISTOL ROYAL HOSPITAL FOR CHILDREN 
(BY VERITA) (Agenda Item 8)

Robert Woolley (UHBristol) addressed the meeting and said he was 
conscious of how inadequate his words would be to Mr Condon and his 
family and was sorry for the length of time it had taken for the Trust to issue 
an apology to the family.

Page 51



4

Mr Woolley reminded Members of the circumstances relating to the death of 
a baby, Ben Condon, at the Children’s Hospital on 17th April 2015. He also 
detailed the ways in which the organisation had lost the family’s trust. A 
specialist organisation (Verita) had been asked to undertake an independent 
investigation into the circumstances of the management response to 
allegations about staff behaviours. The written report circulated with the 
agenda papers set out how the Trust was addressing the recommendations 
by Verita.

The report also summarised key concerns Mr Condon had raised with the 
Trust and detailed the Trust’s responses and actions so far. The 4 main 
concerns were summarised as:

 Clinical staff failed to disclose information and/or lied to the family
 Senior management had engaged in a cover-up
 Consultants gave contradictory evidence at the inquest and in other 

statements
 Ben died without appropriate treatment/ with the wrong treatment

Since the last meeting, the Trust had commissioned a further expert opinion 
on the question of whether and when antibiotics should have been given to 
Ben. The Trust found that this latest opinion cast a greater doubt on the 
reasonableness of withholding antibiotics compared to previous expert 
opinion that the Trust had relied on. The Trust had therefore decided it was 
right to apologise to the family and accept that the lack of anti-biotics was a 
material contributing factor in Ben’s death. A public apology had been made.

The Trust was deeply sorry for serious mistakes it had made in managing 
the complaint and in communicating with the family. Whilst accepting that it 
would offer little comfort to the family, the case had led the Trust to make a 
number of improvements in clinical care and in how it communicated and 
engaged with bereaved families.

Members were also advised that Mr Condon had recently taken action to 
make a complaint to the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman 
(PHSO) and had already lodged a claim for clinical negligence. He had also 
asked the General Medical Council (GMC) to investigate 7 doctors involved 
in Ben’s case.

The Committees were asked to note the developments in the case since 
their last consideration, the learning and improvements inside the Children’s 
Hospital and the Trust as a result of its review of Ben’s care. They were also 
asked to note the continuing dissatisfaction of the Condon family and the 
Trust’s hope that this would be addressed by an independent review by the 
PHSO.

Members asked a number of questions about the report and received the 
following information:

Page 52



5

 The Trust acknowledged that the process was far from over in terms 
of implementing recommendations and in terms of the legal 
processes

 NHS Resolutions would be the responsible body dealing with the 
terms of the settlement; it was not known for certain whether a 
confidentiality clause would be included; information on the settlement 
terms would be reported to Members in due course

 If a child with a viral illness was a patient today, it was not necessarily 
appropriate that anti-biotics would be routinely administered; clinicians 
were aware that administering anti-biotics in the case of a viral 
infection could cause harm in itself and could contribute overall to the 
breeding of drug resistant bacteria; as in Ben’s case, clinical opinion 
was divided on the issue and the hospital had to trust the doctors’ 
professional judgement in each case to weigh up whether there was 
an undiagnosed bacterial or viral infection; with the actions taken by 
the Trust following Ben death, the chances of the issue recurring had 
been minimised

 In terms of how quickly the type of infection could be identified, if an 
identical case presented itself today, tests would be done to 
determine the type of infection but it was important to note that the 
tests themselves could be risky and invasive especially for very small 
children; awareness of the risk of a secondary infection had been 
heightened since Ben’s case

 Accepting that the report not address the issue of identifying blame or 
identifying a single person as responsible, the Trust felt it had set out 
the issues as openly as possibly in the summary in appendix 1 to the 
report; this set out the allegations against clinicians and the Trust and 
described the approach taken by the Trust in response; the family 
said they wanted the truth and this was understandable however their 
truth was to apportion blame to doctors and to Mr Woolley as Chief 
Executive; it was a complex issue to which explanations had been 
given and while that might look like confuscation to the family, 
nonetheless there were more innocent explanations for the 
inconsistencies; some behaviours, though, had clearly been wrong, 
for example suggesting the deleting of a recording

 A small number of complaints had been received since 2015 from 
parents about failures of care in the intensive care unit; some would 
be the subject of inquests; the Trust’s representatives did not recall 
anything similar to Ben’s case

 There were a range of ways of dealing with complaints; issues 
included whether dissatisfaction was expressed on the ward; there 
was a service called Liaise to deal with concerned parties; and there 
was a formal thorough complaints process

Page 53



6

 The cost of litigation costs was not yet known and actions were on-
going; it would be a cost to the public purse; the Trust subscribed to a 
negligence scheme and NHS Resolution would pay any 
compensation awarded

The Chair made closing comments. Both Scrutiny Committees were satisfied 
that the review of services had been conducted thoroughly and in great 
depth by the CQC and through the independent specialist investigation by 
Verita. They were also satisfied to see that families had taken part in the 
Steering Group and through an on-line virtual group. The Committees noted 
the progress in implementing the recommendations identified in the Trust’s 
report and noted that many of them had been completed and were already 
part of standard practice. Many lessons had been learned and the service 
had moved forward with improvements both in the standard of care for 
patients and in the communication with the patients’ families. 

The Committees would await the outcome of the various processes outlined 
in the report, including the progress of litigation, professional review by the 
GMC and independent investigation by the PHSO. The Committees 
requested that they be kept informed of the outcomes of these processes. 

Whilst having every sympathy with the bereaved families, it was felt that the 
two Committees had done all they could within the scope of their powers and 
it would not serve any useful purpose to convene the meeting in common 
again. There was in fact no role for the meeting going forward and she 
suggested that the meeting now be brought to a close. 

In response, other South Glos members felt that as the matter had not been 
concluded, there would be a benefit in reconvening a meeting in common in 
a year’s time.

Upon a PROPOSAL by Cllr Ian Scott, SECONDED by Cllr April Begley, and 
being put to the vote it was

RESOLVED by the South Glos Health Scrutiny Committee: That the 
meeting in common be reconvened in a year’s time to review progress.

VOTING: 7 FOR
0 AGAINST
3 ABSTENTIONS

Upon a PROPOSAL by Cllr Brenda Massey, SECONDED by Cllr Tony 
Carey and upon being put to the vote it was

RESOLVED by Bristol People Scrutiny Commission: To receive a 
progress written report from the UHBristol Trust in a year’s time, reserving 
the option to convene a further meeting if appropriate.

VOTING: 5 FOR

Page 54



7

0 AGAINST
0 ABSTENTIONS

The meeting closed at 3.40pm

Chair………………………………………………………………………………

Date………………………………………………………………………………..

Page 55



Name of Meeting – Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
13th March 2017

Report of: Shahzia Daya, Service Director, Legal and Democratic Services

Title: Process for Dealing with Exempt Material

Ward: City Wide

Officer Presenting Report: Nancy Rollason, Service Manager, Legal 

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9222483

Recommendation

That Members consider and comment on the proposed revised procedure for dealing with exempt 
information before a meeting takes place. 

Summary

At the meeting on 8th September 16, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board (OSMB) requested 
that a review be conducted regarding the procedure around dealing with ‘exempt’ material.  The extract 
minute is copied below; 

8TH SEPTEMBER 2016 EXTRACT MINUTE;

16. Protocol for dealing with exempt items.

The Chair confirmed that he wished the Monitoring Officer to develop a protocol that worked as there 
had been recent instances of wholesale exempt reports when not all of the material warranted that 
approach. The Interim Chief Executive made clear that the objective was that as much information as 
possible went into the public domain. A Councillor added that it was vital that any protocol had the ability 
to challenge the decision to make information exempt in order to see that the decision was robust. The 
Chair accepted this was a valid element of the protocol. 

Resolved – that the Board notes that a review of procedures relating to exempt/confidential material 
would be conducted and a report be brought back to the Board later in the municipal year.

Page 56

Agenda Item 12



Name of Meeting – Report

Proposed process 

If report contains no exempt information If report contains information that needs 
to be excluded from publication

If Scrutiny Chairs have no objection          If Scrutiny Chairs object to the decision
to the decision

Step 1 – Officers refer a 
report to the Monitoring 
Officer to decide if any 
material may need to be 
considered in private 
session (exempt)

Step 2 –Monitoring Officer makes decision as 
to what information may be needed to be 
heard in private.  There will be a presumption 
of openness and small-scale redactions will 
be used where possible.

No further action 
required

Step 3 –Monitoring 
Officer refers decision to 
relevant Scrutiny Chair 
and Chair of OSM

No further action 
required

Step 4 - Decision 
reviewed by Monitoring 
Officer and final 
judgement made

Overarching principle – information should be made publically available, exempt 
information should be the exception 

Page 57



Name of Meeting – Report

2. Context 

2.1 The decision on whether or not information is exempt or not is one for the committee 
deliberating on that item of business, not officers. 

2.2 The duty to allow members of the public and press access to a meeting, and also the 
papers provided to that meeting, are contained in the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended and as applied to the elected mayor and cabinet). The power to decide that 
an item of business on an agenda is ‘exempt’ from this duty resides in the Committee 
deliberating on that item.

2.3 The process for officers is in effect to work backwards from this decision. The 
Monitoring officer must consider whether or not it is likely that a Committee will resolve 
to go into private session and, therefore, not publish the papers in advance as they 
would otherwise do.

2.4 It is therefore the monitoring officer who is the final arbiter as to what is or is not likely to 
result in a resolution to exclude the public and press. 

2.5 The role of the Monitoring Officer then changes from one of arbiter to one of advisor at 
the committee meeting itself as the final and actual decision of whether or not papers 
are exempt from public access is for the Committee or Cabinet to make, not the 
Monitoring Officer. 

2.6 If a meeting makes a decision to remain in public session, the reports and papers 
previously marked ‘not for publication’ in the likelihood of them being exempt, would be 
made available to the public with immediate effect and then published in the normal 
way.

2.7 When information is required to be exempt, save in exceptional circumstances as 
determined by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the chair, then the information 
should be contained within exempt appendices. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:  None.

Page 58



Name of Meeting – Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
13th March 2017

Report of: Shahzia Daya, Service Director, Legal and Democratic Services

Title: Process for Dealing with Exempt Material

Ward: City Wide

Officer Presenting Report: Nancy Rollason, Service Manager, Legal 

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9222483

Recommendation

That Members consider and comment on the proposed revised procedure for dealing with exempt 
information before a meeting takes place. 

Summary

At the meeting on 8th September 16, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board (OSMB) requested 
that a review be conducted regarding the procedure around dealing with ‘exempt’ material.  The extract 
minute is copied below; 

8TH SEPTEMBER 2016 EXTRACT MINUTE;

16. Protocol for dealing with exempt items.

The Chair confirmed that he wished the Monitoring Officer to develop a protocol that worked as there 
had been recent instances of wholesale exempt reports when not all of the material warranted that 
approach. The Interim Chief Executive made clear that the objective was that as much information as 
possible went into the public domain. A Councillor added that it was vital that any protocol had the ability 
to challenge the decision to make information exempt in order to see that the decision was robust. The 
Chair accepted this was a valid element of the protocol. 

Resolved – that the Board notes that a review of procedures relating to exempt/confidential material 
would be conducted and a report be brought back to the Board later in the municipal year.

Page 59



Name of Meeting – Report

Proposed process 

If report contains no exempt information If report contains information that needs 
to be excluded from publication

If Scrutiny Chairs have no objection          If Scrutiny Chairs object to the decision
to the decision

Step 1 – Officers refer a 
report to the Monitoring 
Officer to decide if any 
material may need to be 
considered in private 
session (exempt)

Step 2 –Monitoring Officer makes decision as 
to what information may be needed to be 
heard in private.  There will be a presumption 
of openness and small-scale redactions will 
be used where possible.

No further action 
required

Step 3 –Monitoring 
Officer refers decision to 
relevant Scrutiny Chair 
and Chair of OSM

No further action 
required

Step 4 - Decision 
reviewed by Monitoring 
Officer and final 
judgement made

Overarching principle – information should be made publically available, exempt 
information should be the exception 

Page 60



Name of Meeting – Report

2. Context 

2.1 The decision on whether or not information is exempt or not is one for the committee 
deliberating on that item of business, not officers. 

2.2 The duty to allow members of the public and press access to a meeting, and also the 
papers provided to that meeting, are contained in the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended and as applied to the elected mayor and cabinet). The power to decide that 
an item of business on an agenda is ‘exempt’ from this duty resides in the Committee 
deliberating on that item.

2.3 The process for officers is in effect to work backwards from this decision. The 
Monitoring officer must consider whether or not it is likely that a Committee will resolve 
to go into private session and, therefore, not publish the papers in advance as they 
would otherwise do.

2.4 It is therefore the monitoring officer who is the final arbiter as to what is or is not likely to 
result in a resolution to exclude the public and press. 

2.5 The role of the Monitoring Officer then changes from one of arbiter to one of advisor at 
the committee meeting itself as the final and actual decision of whether or not papers 
are exempt from public access is for the Committee or Cabinet to make, not the 
Monitoring Officer. 

2.6 If a meeting makes a decision to remain in public session, the reports and papers 
previously marked ‘not for publication’ in the likelihood of them being exempt, would be 
made available to the public with immediate effect and then published in the normal 
way.

2.7 When information is required to be exempt, save in exceptional circumstances as 
determined by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the chair, then the information 
should be contained within exempt appendices. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:  None.

Page 61



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2017 / 2018 – Potential Topics

September 17

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

November 17

 Budget Scrutiny approach including update from MTFP group
 OSM referral to Mayor
 Libraries T&F Report 
 Flood Risk Strategy
 Waste Company update

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

December 17 – 1st Meeting (7th December)

 Safeguarding Adults and Safeguarding Children Boards Annual Reports 16-17
 Budget Scrutiny Timeline
 Council Tax Base
 Collection Fund
 The Arena – position paper
 Senior Officer Restructure Timetable

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 13



 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

December 17 – 2nd Meeting (18th December)

Extraordinary meeting;

 Companies Update –Bristol Holding and Bristol Waste (exempt session)

January 18  - 1st meeting (11th January)

 Mayor’s Question time –informal discussion time with Mayor
 Bristol Energy (exempt session)

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

January 18 - 2nd  meeting (18th January)

Extraordinary meeting (s);

 Feedback from MTFP working group
 Budget Scrutiny

January 18 – 3rd  meeting (22nd  January)

Extraordinary meeting (s);

 Arena
 Budget Scrutiny

P
age 63



February 18

 Update from Libraries proposals (provisional)
 Update re Arena (provisional)
 Scrutiny Ways of Working Proposals

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

March 18

 Scrutiny Ways of Working – Outcomes from the Member Workshop
 Scrutiny of the Library Service
 The Arena 
 Exempt Materials 
 Outcome from the Meeting in Common with South Gloucestershire Council re the Benjamin Condon 

Case.

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

April 18

 Risk Register (date TBC) 
 Bristol City Council’s Business Plans (provisional item)
 Students/Council Tax (provisional item)
 Scrutiny of the Housing Company (provisional item)
 Waste Collection Methodology (provisional item)

P
age 64



 Quality of Life Survey Outcomes (provisional item)

Standing Items;
 Scrutiny Work Programme – including arising items
 Task and Finish Groups – updates from Chairs
 Ways of Working – Feedback (verbal items)
 Budget Monitor Report
 Mayor’s Forward Plan

Potential Items to be scheduled – regular updates etc;

 Corporate Parenting Panel Annual Report (previously Nov 2016)
 Education and Skills - Annual Education Performance – All Key Stages (previously Jan 2017)
 The Learning City Board work programme
 Health Scrutiny – joint with the Neighbourhoods Scrutiny commission - The Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme
 Health Scrutiny Health Providers - Quality Account Reports
 School Admissions Annual Report - update due late May/early June so observations can be included in the comments section of the Office of the Schools Adjudicator 

(OSA) Annual Report
 Crime and Disorder Report
 Risk Register (date TBC)
 Performance report (date TBC)
 Update on the HRA (date TBC – possibly 18/19)
 How to make consultation more effective
 Governance Arrangements i.e. how to improve the relationship between OSM and other bodies such as the Health and Wellbeing Board and West of 

England Combined Authority – to be listed for 18/19

P
age 65



Name of Meeting – Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
8th March 2018

Report of: Shahzia Daya, Service Director, Legal and Democratic Services

Title: Mayor’s Forward Plan (Standing Item)

Ward: City Wide

Officer Presenting Report: Lucy Fleming, Democratic and Scrutiny Manager

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9222483

Recommendation

That the Board receive the current edition of the Mayor’s Forward Plan of Key Decisions to help inform 
the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2017/18 and beyond.

Summary

The report provides the latest version of the Mayor’s Forward Plan

The significant issues in the report are:

The Board will wish to identify any forthcoming Key Decisions that will require input from Scrutiny.  

Page 66

Agenda Item 14



Name of Meeting – Report

Background

1.   The Mayor’s Forward Plan is published monthly to give notice of key decisions that will be 
considered by the Cabinet, Health & Wellbeing Board or Learning City Partnership Board.  A key 
decision is defined as one which;

• Will result in expenditure of £500K or over

• Will result in savings of £500K or over

• Be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in two or more wards in 
the city

2.  The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board (OSMB) will wish to review the list of forthcoming 
Key Decisions to ensure any relevant items can be considered by Scrutiny.

The latest version of the report can be found at appendix A. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background Papers:  None.

Appendix A – Mayor’s Forward Plan

Page 67



Forward plan

This update published 5 February 2018
Democratic Services
Contact: Sam Wilcock, Democratic Services Officer, email: sam.mahony@bristol.gov.uk 
Tel: 0117 92 23846 

THIS DOCUMENT GIVES NOTICE OF 
ANTICIPATED KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN 
AT CABINET AND OTHER MEETINGSP

age 68



- 2 -

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL - FORWARD PLAN
INDEX OF PROPOSED KEY DECISIONS

The Forward Plan gives notice of anticipated key decisions to be taken at Cabinet, Health and Wellbeing Board  and Learning City Partnership Board 
meetings.  It will be updated and published on the Council website www.bristol.gov.uk on a monthly basis.

Key Decision
Under the Council’s constitution, the definition of a key decision is a decision which is likely to:

1) Result in expenditure of £500,000 or over.

2) Result in savings of £500,000 or over.

3) Be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in two or more wards in the city. 

Non-key Decision
For additional information and completeness the Forward Plan also contains those items which are outside the definition of a key decision.

Cabinet Meetings
The Cabinet will normally meet on a Tuesday on a six weekly cycle. Meetings start at 4pm and are currently held at City Hall, College Green
Bristol, BS1 5TR.  Meetings of the Cabinet are open to the public with the exception of discussion regarding reports which contain 
exempt/confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information which will be identified in the Mayor’s Forward Plan).

Reports submitted to the Mayor and Cabinet will be available on the council’s website 5 clear working days before the date the decision can be 
made.  If you would like a copy by email please contact democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk   

P
age 69

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


- 3 -

Glossary:

HWB Health and Wellbeing Board
LCPB Learning City Partnership Board
APR15 Under the Council’s Constitution if a key decision needs to be taken with less than 28 days’ notice, it can still be taken under APR15 – 

General Exception, if it is impracticable to defer it until the next scheduled Cabinet meeting.  The relevant Scrutiny Commission must 
be notified and the report published as part of the agenda 5 clear working days ahead of the Cabinet meeting

Description of Exempt Information :- England, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the local Government Act 1972

1 Information relating to any individual.

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, with any labour relations 
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the authority.

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes
(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; 0r

(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment.

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of a crime.

P
age 70



- 4 -

Cabinet Members
 Marvin Rees (Lab) - Mayor of Bristol 
 Cllr Craig Cheney (Lab) – Designated Deputy Mayor (with special responsibility for Finance, Governance and Performance)
 Cllr Asher Craig (Lab) – Deputy Mayor (with special responsibility for Communities - Public Health, Public Transport, Libraries, 

Parks, Events and Equalities)
 Cllr Nicola Beech (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Spatial Planning and City Design
 Cllr Kye Dudd (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Energy, Waste and Regulatory Services
 Cllr Helen Godwin (Lab)  – Cabinet Member for Women, Children and Young People and Lead Member for Children’s Services 
 Cllr Helen Holland (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
 Cllr Anna Keen (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Education and Skills 
 Cllr Paul Smith (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Housing
 Cllr Mhairi Trelfall (Lab) – Cabinet Member for Transport and Connectivity

The City Council’s website www.bristol.gov.uk contains all supporting documents and decisions for formal meetings and lots more 
about the City Council.

P
age 71

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/


Lead Officer Title and summary of Decision  Meeting 
date

Decision taker Scrutiny Remit

- 5 -

Alex Minshull 
Alex.Minshull@
bristol.gov.uk

Improving Public Health - A Clean Air Plan for Bristol
This report seeks approval to proceed with the application and 
the acceptance of further grant funding from Defra to carry out 
the new statutory direction set by the Government in relation to 
a clean air action plan.
 
Open 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Mhairi 
Threlfall, Councillor 
Kye Dudd

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Place 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Peter Mann 
peter.mann@br
istol.gov.uk

Airport Road and change request for LEP LGF allocation - NEW 
ITEM
This report recommends that, following the approval of the 
change request by the WECA Committee on 2 February 2018, 
authority be given to the Service Director for Transport to:
Facilitate the relevant procurement and expenditure of the £790k 
of Local Growth Fund (LGF) grant from the 2016-18 sustainable 
transport programme;
and to bring forward an additional sum of £1.04m from the LGF 
2018-20 programme to allow completion of a comprehensive 
scheme on Airport Road.
 
Open 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Mhairi 
Threlfall

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Place 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Terry Dafter 
terry.dafter@br
istol.gov.uk

Bristol - becoming an Age-Friendly City (Non-key)
This report seeks approval to start the process for Bristol to 
become a World Health Organisation Age-Friendly City and to join 
the Global Network for Age-Friendly Cities and Communities.

 
Open 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Helen 
Holland

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ People 
Scrutiny 
Commission

P
age 72



Lead Officer Title and summary of Decision  Meeting 
date

Decision taker Scrutiny Remit

- 6 -

Terry Dafter 
terry.dafter@br
istol.gov.uk

Better Lives Programme
A report to seek approval for the Better Lives programme 
approach and objectives, and the investment priorities for the 
Improved Better Care Fund (IBCF). Also to consider:

1. The procurement of a consultant 
2. The rollout of mobile technology to social work staff 
3. The increased rate for home care that has been applied since 
November 2017.
 
Open
 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Helen 
Holland

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ People 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Jacqui Jensen 
Jacqui.Jensen@
bristol.gov.uk

Education Capital Strategy Update and Next Phase - NEW ITEM
This report updates on the delivery of the Capital Strategy in 
2017, and proposes next steps for the continued delivery of the 
Education Capital Strategy objectives.
 
Open
 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Anna Keen Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ People 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Jane Taylor 
jane.taylor@bri
stol.gov.uk

Employment Support Innovation Fund - NEW ITEM
This report seeks approval for delivery of the WECA grant funded 
Employment Support Innovation Fund Pilot.
 
Open

 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Anna Keen Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ People 
Scrutiny 
Commission

P
age 73



Lead Officer Title and summary of Decision  Meeting 
date

Decision taker Scrutiny Remit

- 7 -

Alison Comley 
alison.comley@
bristol.gov.uk

Bristol City Council Good Food Standards for Procurement of 
Food & Catering Services - NEW ITEM
This report requests that Bristol City Council adopts minimum 
standards for procurement of Food and Catering Services (to be 
known as the Good Food Standards). 
 
Open
 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Asher Craig Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ 
Neighbourhoods 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Colin Molton 
colin.molton@b
ristol.gov.uk

Affordable Housing Practice Note (AHPN) 2018 - NEW ITEM
This report recommends approval of a revised Affordable Housing 
Practice Note (AHPN) that will provide updated guidance to 
developers when submitting eligible residential planning 
applications and incentivise developers to increase affordable 
housing supply in advance of a new Bristol Local Plan.
 
Open

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Paul Smith Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ 
Neighbourhoods 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Colin Molton 
colin.molton@b
ristol.gov.uk

Lockleaze Estate Regeneration & Housing Delivery - NEW ITEM
This report recommends funding for Lockleaze Estate 
Regeneration & Housing Delivery, to enable the delivery of some 
800 new homes.
 
Open

 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Paul Smith Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ 
Neighbourhoods 
Scrutiny 
Commission

P
age 74



Lead Officer Title and summary of Decision  Meeting 
date

Decision taker Scrutiny Remit

- 8 -

Patsy Mellor 
patsy.mellor@b
ristol.gov.uk

Discretionary Business Rate Relief for Not-For-Profit & 
Charitable Organisations
This report recommends the approval of the revised Discretionary 
Rate Relief Policy for not-for-profit and charitable organisations.
 
Open

 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Craig 
Cheney

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Resources 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Alison Comley 
alison.comley@
bristol.gov.uk

Re-tender for a swipe card and barcode payment service for 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Council tenant rents - NEW 
ITEM
This report recommends the approval of a re-tender process for a 
service which processes payments of council tax, business rates 
and rents at Post Offices / Paypoint outlets across Bristol.
 
Open

 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Craig 
Cheney

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Resources 
Scrutiny 
Commission

Denise Murray 
denise.murray
@bristol.gov.uk

2017/18 Budget Monitoring Report - P9 (Non-key)
The Council approved budgets and directorate spending limits for 
the 2017/18 financial year on 21 February 2017. The purpose of 
this report is to inform Cabinet of the Council’s overall financial 
performance against revenue and capital budgets as at the end of 
December 2017
 
Open
 

Cabinet
6 Mar 2018

Councillor Craig 
Cheney

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Resources 
Scrutiny 
Commission

P
age 75



Lead Officer Title and summary of Decision  Meeting 
date

Decision taker Scrutiny Remit

- 9 -

Denise Murray 
denise.murray
@bristol.gov.uk

2017/18 Budget Monitoring Report - P10 (Non-key)
The Council approved budgets and directorate spending limits for 
the 2017/18 financial year on 21 February 2017. The purpose of 
this report is to inform Cabinet of the Council’s overall financial 
performance against revenue and capital budgets as at the end of 
January 2018
 
Open

 

Cabinet
3 Apr 2018

Councillor Craig 
Cheney

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Management 
Board/ Resources 
Scrutiny 
Commission

P
age 76



Name of Meeting – Report

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
8th March 2018

Report of: Shahzia Daya, Service Director, Legal and Democratic Services

Title: 2017/18 Budget Monitoring Report – Period 9

Ward: City Wide

Officer Presenting Report: Andrea Dell, Service Manager, Democratic Engagement 

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9222483

Recommendation

That Members consider and comment on the 2017/18 Period 9 forecast outturn report that has been 
prepared for the Mayor and Cabinet. 

Context

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board have responsibility for monitoring financial information 
and receive regular reports that provide an update on the Council’s overall financial performance.    

Appendices 

Appendix A – Council Summary
Appendix B – People Summary
Appendix C – Place Summary
Appendix D -  Neighbourhoods Summary
Appendix E -  Resources Summary
Appendix F -  HRA Summary
Appendix G – DSG Summary
Appendix H – Public Health Summary
Appendix I – Budget Monitor Summary

Page 77

Agenda Item 15



Appendix A
Bristol City Council – Summary
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

a: 2017/18 Summary Headlines 

b: Budget Monitor

Key messages

 The overall forecast outturn for 2017/18 is (£0.4m) underspend 
which has improved by (£1.3m) since P7.

 The improved forecast for People is largely due to the allocation of 
additional improved Better Care funding.  

 For Place the forecast has improved due to miscellaneous Property 
savings.

 The movement in Corporate expenditure is due to an increased 
income budget.

 The forecast for Neighbourhoods has improved by (£0.1m) due in 
part to increased income from Housing Benefit. 

 The overall level of aged debt that has been outstanding for over 
30 days has increased from £28.6m in P7 to £31.8m in P9.  This is 
largely due to £2.6m PFI charges to three schools.  There is also a 
£2.6m invoice to a supplier for Place capital work which has not 
yet been paid and a final reminder has been sent. 

c: Risks and Opportunities

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement                                                                      

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

2017/18 Forecast Outturn against Budget

Budget

YTD Expenditure

Forecast Outturn

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Budget Area
P9  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

P7  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

Movement 
in forecast 

since P7
People 3.8 6.0 (2.2)
Place (0.5) (0.3) (0.2)
Neighbourhoods (1.0) (0.9) (0.1)
Resources & City Director (1.3) (2.3) 1.0
Corporate (1.3) (1.7) 0.4
Total (0.4) 0.9 (1.3)

4.    Savings Delivery RAG Status

Total value of 
savings

Value at risk Risk 
Total value of 

savings
Value at risk Risk 

(£m) (£m) (%) (£m) (£m) (%)

R  No - savings are at risk 6.4 3.1 48% R  No - no plan in place 3.7 2.6 70%

G  Yes -savings are safe 13.2 0.6 5% A  Yes -plan in place but still to deliver 15.3 0.8 5%

C - Saving has been secured and delivered
13.6 0.0 0% G  Yes -savings can be taken from budget 10.7 0.0 0%

Grand Total 33.2 3.7 11% Grand Total 29.7 3.4 12%

Top 5 largest savings at risk in 17/18 (ordered by size of saving at risk) Top 5 largest savings at risk in 17/18 (ordered by size of saving at risk)

Value at Risk in 
17/18 

Value at Risk in 
17/18 

(£'000s) (£'000s)

1,350 740

750 497

IFP10 ncrease council foster carers 360 366

225 274

FP22 Increase supported living provision 198

225FP18 More efficient home to school travel

BE2 Review our property services FP05 Reduced education services grant

BE3-g Restructure admin and business support teams

FP18 More efficient home to school travel BE1  - 10 Restructuring support teams

ID – Name of Proposal ID – Name of Proposal

FP04 Recommission community support services RS04 Reduce the number of library buildings and redesign the service

17/18 18/19

5.    Revenue Risks and Opportunities

£7.0m

£0.4m
£0.1m

£7.5m

-£0.2m -£0.3m -£0.3m
-£0.8m

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

People Place Neighbourhoods Resources and City
Director

Total

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

Revenue Risks and Opportunities - Directorates

Opportunity

Risk

Net Risks / Opp

Net Risk £6.7m

3.    Aged Debt Analysis

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years
Total 5,487,639 8,292,134 1,453,181 1,688,742 8,887,960 3,565,074 5,720,157 2,153,202

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 D

eb
t £

00
0s

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

(All)Directorate Aged Debt Analysis  -

(0)

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years

Ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g D

eb
t  

£0
00

s

Debt Age Range

(All)
Central Government Charities Employees Individuals Local Authorities Schools Schools - BCC Administered Trade NHS

Customer Aged Debt Analysis  -

  Revised Budget                   Forecast Outturn         Outturn Variance Movement from P7  £364.7m in P7           £365.6m in P7             £0.9m in P7

P9 £364.7m   £364.3m   (£0.4m)         (£1.3m)

Page 78



Key Messages

 The savings tracker shows that £3.1m of savings are at risks of not being delivered in 2017/18, which is as per the P7 position.

 There are additional risks of £7.5m identified across the Council which are not reflected in the forecast outturn.  The main 
risks are the Clinical Commissioning Group turnaround plans £3m, not achieving Care and Support Adults savings of £2.6m, 
partly due to high prices of care costs, and the costs associated with reshaping the provision of Children Centre services.

 The amount of opportunities that have been identified as potential mitigating actions has reduced to £0.8m and comprises 
potential use of flexible homelessness support grant and reserves.

 The overall net risk not included in the 2017/18 forecast outturn is £6.7m which is £4.6m higher than in P7 – this is due to 
the risks in Care and Support Adults as detailed above. 

d: Capital  

Key Messages

 The level of projected slippage on capital has increased by a further (£31.2m) since P7.

 This is largely due to reduced forecast expenditure for 2017/18 in Place of (£20.0m) based on the rephasing of 
expenditure to later years for Bristol Arena and Temple Meads East regeneration £4.4m, Transport including RiF funded 
Local Enterprise Zone £8.9m and £4.3m on Housing Delivery programme.

 Further details are provided in the Directorate dashboards.

Gross expenditure by Programme Budget Expenditur
e to Date Forecast Variance

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 to

 d
at

e

Fo
re

ca
st

Budget
Total  

Expenditur
e to Date

Commitments

Variance - 
Total  

budget vs 
actual + 

commitme
nts

Forecast 
(including 

prior 
years 

actuals)

Variance 
Total 

scheme 
budget vs 

total 
scheme 
forecast Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 to
 d

at
e

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 +

 
Co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

at
e

Fo
re

ca
st

People 34,700 13,910 28,944 (5,756) 40% 83% 195,662 48,305 3,149 (144,208) 146,908 (48,754) 25% 26% 75%
Resources 6,926 792 3,060 (3,866) 11% 44% 33,717 12,782 967 (19,967) 33,601 (116) 38% 41% 100%
Neighbourhoods 11,431 2,515 7,341 (4,090) 22% 64% 39,015 10,695 943 (27,377) 37,849 (1,166) 27% 30% 97%
Place 132,095 40,724 74,125 (57,970) 31% 56% 568,135 116,139 25,528 (426,468) 581,755 13,620 20% 25% 102%
Neighbourhoods (HRA) 42,076 17,817 34,238 (7,837) 42% 81% 270,544 66,585 5,214 (198,745) 262,707 (7,837) 25% 27% 97%
Corporate Funding & Expenditure 8,336 0 0 (8,336) 0% 0% 55,481 5,145 0 (50,336) 48,850 (6,631) 9% 9% 88%

Total Capital Expenditure 235,564 75,757 147,709 (87,855) 32% 63% 1,162,554 259,652 35,801 (867,101) 1,111,670 (50,884) 22% 25% 96%

£000s % £000s %

  Revised Budget              Expenditure to Date       Forecast Outturn             Outturn Variance

     £235.6m  £75.8m £147.7m      (£87.9m)
           32% of budget           63% of budget

Page 79



Appendix B
Bristol City Council - People
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

a: 2017/18 Summary Headlines

b: Budget Monitor

c: Risks and Opportunities

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement                                                                      

0

50

100

150

200

250

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

2017/18 Forecast Outturn against Budget

Budget

YTD Expenditure

Forecast Outturn

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Budget Area
P9  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

P7  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

Movement 
in forecast 

since P7

Care & Support - Adults 2.4 4.0 (1.6)
Education & Skills 0.8 0.7 0.1
Care & Support – Children & Families 0.5 0.9 (0.4)
Strategic Commissioning & Commercial Relations 0.1 (0.3) 0.4
Management - People 0.1 0.1 (0.0)
Early Intervention & Targeted Support 0.0 0.6 (0.6)
Total 3.8 6.0 (2.2)

4.    Savings Delivery RAG Status 5.    Revenue Risks and Opportunities

£5.8m

£1.2m

£7.0m

-£0.2m
-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Care and Support Adults Care and Support Children Education and Skills Early Intervention Total

£ 
M

ill
io

ns

Opportunity

Risk

Net Risks / Opp

3.    Aged Debt Analysis

(0)

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 D
eb

t  
£0

00
s

Debt Age Range

People
Central Government Charities Employees Individuals Local Authorities Schools Schools - BCC Administered Trade NHS

Customer Aged Debt Analysis  -

  Revised Budget                   Forecast Outturn         Outturn Variance Movement from P7
£214.8m in P7        £220.8m in P7       £6.0m in P7

P9  £214.8m   £218.6m   £3.8m       (£2.2m)

6.    Mitigating Actions
In the medium-term, the services within People will converge into three divisions and the underlying budget issues will be addressed in the following ways

Division Approach
Adults 

Social Care
Implementation of three-tier model for care and support through the Better Lives programme, working with partners to invest the 
Improved Better Care fund to address demand pressures and to deliver savings to the Council’s budget.

Children’s 
Services

Implementation of the Strengthening Families programme using early investment to support families, to improve social work practice 
and get better outcomes for young people, all to address existing pressures and to deliver savings  to the Council’s budget.

Education A bottom-up service redesign for Education, recognising the lower level of funding available with the loss of the Education Services 
Grant, but using DSG and other funding streams to best effect in meeting statutory responsibilities and local service aspirations.

Key messages
 The overall forecast position has improved by (£2.2m) since P7 mainly due to 

the application of further improved Better Care funding.  There are other 
movements in the individual variances between P7 and P9 due to the 
reallocation of the Strategic Commissioning and Early Intervention Divisions to 
Adults, Children and Education.

 Adults overspend of £2.4m is a decrease of (£1.6m), due to allocation of Better 
Care fund income.  There is also a £0.7m increase in Preparing for Adulthood 
recognising that the at-risk savings are unlikely to be delivered. 

 Strategic Commissioning is showing an overspend of £0.1m, but this has arisen 
through the realignment of cost-centres (mainly to Adults) to match the new 
management structures.  

 The Directorate will seek a supplementary estimate of £3.8m in order to 
remain within its budget.  

Page 80



d: Capital  

Key Messages
 Since P7 there is a further £0.9m slippage forecast.

e: Key Activity Data

            

  Revised Budget              Expenditure to Date       Forecast Outturn             Outturn Variance

    £34.7m £13.9m £28.9m      (£5.8m)
          40% of budget           83% of budget

Comparison of Placement Prices

Page 81



Appendix C
Bristol City Council - Place
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

a: 2017/18 Summary Headlines

b: Budget Monitor

Key messages
 Place Directorate is forecasting an improved outturn position of an underspend of 

(£0.5m) which is a movement of (£0.2m) since P7.  The base budget has also been 
increased by £0.4m. 

 Property has a £2.1m forecast overspend position mainly due to underdelivered 
savings. Please also note the current forecast includes the capitalisation of c£0.3m 
one-off costs in relation to Park View early exit plan. These costs will be reviewed 
once the natures of the costs / funding are confirmed. This has been included as a 
risk under Risk & Opps.

 The adverse movement in Economy is due a realignment of salary and overhead 
cost recovery £0.5m to the corporate budget offset by a (£0.2m) favourable 
movement as a result of increases in forecast salary costs recharges to the Housing 
Delivery capital project.

 The (£0.3m) improvement under Transport relates to reductions in R&M costs for 
bus shelters and increased in capital salary recharges 

 The majority of the aged debt is within property.

c: Risks and Opportunities

Key Message

 Analysis of additional risks and opportunities for Place 
Directorate shows that the net risk for mitigation against the 
overall forecast underspend is £0.1m, which is not currently 
reflected in the forecast.

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement                                                                      

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

2017/18 Forecast Outturn against Budget

Budget

YTD Expenditure

Forecast Outturn

Note YTD Expenditure is net of income received.

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Budget Area
P9  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

P7  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

Movement in 
forecast 
since P7

Property 2.1 2.8 (0.7)
Economy (0.4) (0.7) 0.3
Energy (0.6) (0.9) 0.4
Planning (0.6) (0.6) 0.0
Transport (1.1) (0.8) (0.3)
Total (0.5) (0.3) (0.2)

4.    Savings Delivery RAG Status 5.    Revenue Risks and Opportunities

0.1

0.3

0.4

-0.1 -0.1
-0.1

-0.3

-0.4

-0.3

-0.2

-0.1

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

Planning Energy Economy Transport Property Total

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

Opportunity

Risk

Net Risks / Opp

3.    Aged Debt Analysis

(500)

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years

O
ut
sa
nn
di
ng
De
bt
£0
00
s

Debt Age Range

Place
Capital - Place Economy Energy Planning Property Transport

Divisional Aged Debt Analysis  -

  Revised Budget                   Forecast Outturn         Outturn Variance Movement from P7
      £13.6m in P7                       £13.3m in P7             (£0.3m) in P7

P9  £14.0m   £13.5m   (£0.5m)  (£0.2m)

6.    Mitigating Actions – Facilities Management
FM Cumulative Mitigations

2017/18               
£

2018/19           
£

2019/2020           
£

Stationery                  22,250              22,500                   22,500 
Reduced Window Cleaning                    2,250                4,500                     4,500 
R&M Spending Freeze                220,000 
Workwear/PPE Efficiencies                    1,000                1,000                     1,000 
Fleet - Procurement           340,000                370,000 
Post Efficiencies                  22,172              22,172                   22,172 
M&E/Building F Tender           170,000                250,000 
Print & Mail Outsourcing           112,500                150,000 
Docks Restructure                250,000 
Harbour Review (Income)                   50,000 
Markets Charter (Income)                   35,000 
Cleaning                  29,750              60,000                   60,000 
Security                  17,150              50,000                   50,000 

Total                314,572           782,672             1,265,172 

Page 82



d: Capital  

Key Messages
 The forecast outturn for capital expenditure has reduced by £20.0m since period 7 due to further slippage or rephasing of projects.
 An additional £4.4m expenditure has been reprofiled to future years due to the current reviews under taking on the Bristol Arena & Temple Meads East 

Regeneration project.
 There has been a reduction in the forecast of (£8.9m) for Transport due to rephasing of RiF funded Local Enterprise Zone spend to future years.
 A number of the projects within the Housing Delivery programme are progressing at a slower pace than anticipated, (a movement of (£4.3m) in the 

forecast outturn), and as a result the budget for 2017/18 will be reprofiled at P10 to reflect a more realistic forecast outturn for this programme.

Capital Budget Monitor Report for period 201709 - Summary by Programme

15/01/2018

Gross expenditure by Programme Budget Expenditur
e to Date Forecast Variance

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 to

 d
at

e

Fo
re

ca
st

Budget
Total  

Expenditur
e to Date

Commitments

Variance - 
Total  

budget vs 
actual + 

commitme
nts

Forecast 
(including 

prior 
years 

actuals)

Variance 
Total 

scheme 
budget vs 

total 
scheme 
forecast Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 to
 d

at
e

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 +

 
Co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

at
e

Fo
re

ca
st

Place
PL20 Strategic Property 1,901 725 1,975 74 38% 104% 7,022 4,477 316 (2,229) 8,361 1,339 64% 68% 119%

PL21 Strategic Property - Essential H&S 1,600 45 509 (1,091) 3% 32% 11,600 45 11 (11,544) 11,570 (30) 0% 0% 100%

PL22 Strategic Property - Investment in existing waste facilities 1,000 0 0 (1,000) 0% 0% 2,000 0 0 (2,000) 1,500 (500) 0% 0% 75%

PL23 Strategic Property - Temple St 3,300 2,605 3,300 0 79% 100% 3,300 2,605 186 (509) 3,300 0 79% 85% 100%

PL25 Strategic Property - Community Capacity Building 1,000 0 0 (1,000) 0% 0% 5,000 0 0 (5,000) 4,000 (1,000) 0% 0% 80%

PL27 Strategic Property - vehicle replacement 3,700 0 0 (3,700) 0% 0% 8,400 0 0 (8,400) 6,077 (2,323) 0% 0% 72%

Total Property division 12,501 3,375 5,784 (6,718) 27% 46% 37,322 7,127 513 (29,682) 34,808 (2,514) 19% 20% 93%

PL11 Bristol Arena & Temple Meads East Regeneration 16,742 1,610 2,303 (14,439) 10% 14% 122,332 5,765 1,153 (115,414) 122,332 0 5% 6% 100%

PL11A Cattle Market Road Development 2,277 566 1,826 (451) 25% 80% 11,250 566 262 (10,421) 11,190 (60) 5% 7% 99%

PL12 Filwood Broadway 1,014 0 0 (1,014) 0% 0% 1,365 3 0 (1,363) 1,365 (0) 0% 0% 100%

PL13 Filwood Green Business Park 1,014 0 952 (62) 0% 94% 1,494 480 12 (1,002) 1,432 (62) 32% 33% 96%

PL16 Economy Development 495 253 490 (5) 51% 99% 818 576 0 (242) 931 113 70% 70% 114%

PL17 Resilience Fund (£1m of the £10m Port Sale) 173 0 80 (93) 0% 46% 1,000 0 0 (1,000) 1,000 0 0% 0% 100%

PL24 Colston Hall 4,557 1,316 4,557 0 29% 100% 48,800 2,643 879 (45,278) 48,800 0 5% 7% 100%

PL26 Old Vic & St George's 1,200 600 1,200 0 50% 100% 1,548 600 0 (948) 1,548 0 39% 39% 100%

PL28 Bottleyard Studios 671 337 671 0 50% 100% 700 366 0 (334) 700 0 52% 52% 100%

PL29 Hengrove Park 0 0 0 0 15 15 0 (0) 15 (0) 100% 100% 100%

PL30 Strategy and Commissioning 15,265 4,050 9,321 (5,944) 27% 61% 177,107 4,239 1,448 (171,420) 176,680 (428) 2% 3% 100%

PL31 Kingswear & Torpoint Flats 381 0 0 (381) 0% 0% 722 340 0 (381) 722 (0) 47% 47% 100%

Total Economy division 28,525 4,682 12,079 (16,446) 16% 42% 190,233 11,543 2,306 (176,383) 190,223 (9) 6% 7% 100%

CD1 Bristol Futures 0 0 0 0 (65) (65) 0 0 (65) 0 100% 100% 100%

PL14 Planning & Sustainable Development 683 225 591 (92) 33% 87% 1,444 369 124 (952) 1,446 2 26% 34% 100%

PL15 Planning & Sustainable Development - Environmental Improvement Programme 0 0 0 0 450 0 0 (450) 350 (100) 0% 0% 78%

Total Planning division 683 225 591 (92) 33% 87% 1,829 304 124 (1,402) 1,731 (98) 17% 23% 95%

PL01 Metrobus 13,729 15,283 13,729 (0) 111% 100% 53,477 55,031 6,448 8,002 53,477 0 103% 115% 100%

PL02 Passenger Transport 2,571 461 1,482 (1,090) 18% 58% 3,501 1,391 344 (1,766) 3,403 (98) 40% 50% 97%

PL03 Residents Parking Schemes 559 410 694 135 73% 124% 2,177 2,028 218 68 3,527 1,350 93% 103% 162%

PL04 Strategic City Transport 16,408 4,457 9,235 (7,173) 27% 56% 19,040 6,493 8,749 (3,798) 18,894 (146) 34% 80% 99%

PL05 Sustainable Transport 16,022 3,131 10,202 (5,820) 20% 64% 29,998 12,014 2,704 (15,279) 30,429 431 40% 49% 101%

PL06 Portway Park & Ride Rail Platform 1,100 0 0 (1,100) 0% 0% 1,100 0 0 (1,100) 1,100 0 0% 0% 100%

PL07 Rail Stations Improvement Programme 800 0 0 (800) 0% 0% 1,600 0 0 (1,600) 1,600 0 0% 0% 100%

PL08 Highways & Drainage Enhancements 3,694 20 1,202 (2,493) 1% 33% 6,591 2,917 234 (3,440) 6,608 17 44% 48% 100%

PL09 Highways Infrastructure - Plimsole Bridge 300 0 100 (200) 0% 33% 300 0 0 (300) 8,400 8,100 0% 0% 2800%

PL10 Highways & Traffic Infrastructure - General 6,786 4,041 6,866 80 60% 101% 16,590 10,346 1,743 (4,502) 23,537 6,947 62% 73% 142%

Total Transport division 61,970 27,802 43,509 (18,460) 45% 70% 134,375 90,220 20,441 (23,715) 150,976 16,601 67% 82% 112%

PL30 Strategy and Commissioning 15,265 4,050 9,321 (5,944) 27% 61% 176,918 4,050 1,448 (171,420) 176,490 (428) 2% 3% 100%

Total Housing Delivery division 15,265 4,050 9,321 (5,944) 27% 61% 176,918 4,050 1,448 (171,420) 176,490 (428) 2% 3% 100%

PL18 Energy services - Renewable energy investment scheme 11,151 589 2,841 (8,311) 5% 25% 13,458 2,895 696 (9,866) 13,526 68 22% 27% 101%

PL19 Energy Services - workstream 2 2,000 0 0 (2,000) 0% 0% 14,000 0 0 (14,000) 14,000 0 0% 0% 100%

Total Energy division 13,151 589 2,841 (10,311) 4% 22% 27,458 2,895 696 (23,866) 27,526 68 11% 13% 100%
Total Capital Expenditure 132,095 40,724 74,125 (57,970) 31% 56% 568,135 116,139 25,528 (426,468) 581,755 13,620 20% 25% 102%

£000s % £000s %

Current Year (FY2017) Performance to 
budget

Scheme Total for Current Timeframe (FY2016 :  
FY2021)

Performance to budget

  Revised Budget              Expenditure to Date       Forecast Outturn             Outturn Variance

    £132.1m £40.7m £74.1m      (£58.0m)
          31% of budget           56% of budget

Page 83



Appendix D
Bristol City Council - Neighbourhoods
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

a: 2017/18 Summary Headlines

b: Budget Monitor

Key messages

 (£0.1m) increase in Forecast underspend since P7 due to a number of low value 
movements which include an additional (£0.1m) Housing Benefit income. This 
negates the previously reported overspend on private sector temporary 
accommodation. 

 Regarding Aged Debt management, at the end of P9 Neighbourhoods had £3.7m 
of aged debt compared to £3.9m in P7. This fall is due to reductions in: Waste 
debtors by £0.2m reflecting a change in the reporting treatment of BWC income; 
and Public Health debtors (grant funded element) by £0.3m reflecting the 
recovery of one previously outstanding invoice. 

 Savings Delivery – negotiations have just concluded on the one initiative - 
Hengrove Leisure Centre Refinancing (FP26) – which is reported below as at risk 
for this year. An update on delivery of the saving will be reported for P10.

 Risks and Opportunities – the position has been assessed as unchanged since P7.

c: Risks and Opportunities

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement                                                                      

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

2017/18 Forecast Outturn against Budget

Budget

YTD Expenditure

Forecast Outturn

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Budget Area
P9  Over/ (under) 

spend £m
P7  Over/ (under) 

spend £m

Movement in 
forecast since 

P7
Citizen Services 0.5 0.4 0.1
Women's Commission 0.0 0.0 0.0
Waste 0.0 0.0 0.0
Neighbourhoods & Communities (0.2) (0.1) (0.1)
Public Health -  General Fund (0.4) (0.4) (0.0)
Housing Options (0.9) (0.7) (0.2)
Total (1.0) (0.9) (0.1)

4.    Savings Delivery RAG Status

3.    Aged Debt Analysis: Includes Grant Funded Public Health 
Debt but not Housing Benefit or Housing Revenue Account

(200)

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years

O
ut

sa
nn

di
ng

 D
eb

t £
00

0s

Debt Age Range

Neighbourhoods

Capital - Neighbourhoods Citizen Services Housing Options Neighbourhoods & Communities Public Health Public Health -  General Fund Waste

Divisional Aged Debt Analysis  -

  Revised Budget                   Forecast Outturn         Outturn Variance Movement from P7    £68.8m in P7                £67.9 in P7    (£0.9m) in P7

P9  £68.8m   £67.8m  (£1.0m)       (£0.1m)

5.    Revenue Risks and Opportunities

£0.06m£0.06m

-£0.35m -£0.35m

-0.40

-0.35

-0.30

-0.25

-0.20

-0.15

-0.10

-0.05

0.00

0.05

0.10

Housing Options Waste Public Health Citizen Services Neighbourhoods and
Communities

Total

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

Opportunity

Risk

Net Risks / Opp

Page 84



d: Capital  

Key Messages 
 The forecast underspend for capital expenditure has increased by (£1.8m) since period 7 due to further rephasing of projects into future years .

Gross expenditure by Programme Budget Expenditur
e to Date Forecast Variance

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 to

 d
at

e

Fo
re

ca
st

Budget
Total  

Expenditur
e to Date

Commitments

Variance - 
Total  

budget vs 
actual + 

commitme
nts

Forecast 
(including 

prior 
years 

actuals)

Variance 
Total 

scheme 
budget vs 

total 
scheme 
forecast Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 to
 d

at
e

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 +

 
Co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

at
e

Fo
re

ca
st

Neighbourhoods
NH01 Libraries for the Future 293 113 154 (139) 39% 53% 906 476 20 (410) 906 0 53% 55% 100%

NH02 Investment in parks and green spaces 2,639 284 958 (1,681) 11% 36% 4,654 1,416 77 (3,162) 4,564 (90) 30% 32% 98%

NH03 Cemeteries & Crematoria 500 0 0 (500) 0% 0% 1,000 0 0 (1,000) 1,000 0 0% 0% 100%

NH04 Third Household Waste Recycling and Re-use Centre 200 0 0 (200) 0% 0% 4,000 0 0 (4,000) 4,000 0 0% 0% 100%

NH05 Sports provision 300 0 0 (300) 0% 0% 4,500 0 0 (4,500) 4,500 0 0% 0% 100%

NH06 Bristol Operations Centre 3,689 1,111 3,235 (454) 30% 88% 7,816 5,238 816 (1,762) 7,362 (454) 67% 77% 94%

NH07 Housing Solutions 3,167 900 2,615 (552) 28% 83% 15,495 3,458 20 (12,017) 14,773 (722) 22% 22% 95%

NH08 Omni Channel Contact Centre (ICT System development). 644 108 279 (365) 17% 43% 644 108 20 (516) 644 0 17% 20% 100%
Total Neighbourhoods 11,431 2,515 7,241 (4,190) 22% 63% 39,015 10,695 953 (27,367) 37,749 (1,266) 27% 30% 97%

£000s % £000s %

Current Year (FY2017) Performance to 
budget

Scheme Total for Current Timeframe (FY2016 :  
FY2021)

Performance to budget

  Revised Budget              Expenditure to Date       Forecast Outturn             Outturn Variance

    £11.4m  £2.5m £7.3m      (£4.1m)
          22% of budget           64% of budget

Page 85



Appendix E
Bristol City Council – Resources and City 
Director
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

a: 2017/18 Summary Headlines

b: Budget Monitor

Key messages

 The increase in forecast outturn is due to Legal Services requiring to retain 
agency lawyers to end of March, arrears due to Members and increased 
court/counsel fees.

 The Resources budget has increased by £83k and this relates to the movement 
of budget for administration staff from the People and Neighbourhoods 
directorates which is part of the centralisation programme for admin and 
business support.

 Aged debt continues to be reviewed and monitored.  Land charge debt has 
received additional finance support and Legal debt is currently under review.  
Procedures for debt recovery will be re-issued to managers shortly following 
senior management review.

 All previous risks and opportunities have now been built into forecast.  

c: Risks and Opportunities

d: Capital  

Key Messages

 The Cloud Host project received Cabinet approval on 9 Jan 18 so expenditure on the project is expected before year end
 The BWP project will be finalised once final dilapidation figures have been confirmed
 Remaining projects are expected to be re-profiled for P10

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement                                                                      

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

£

M
i
l
l
i
o
n
s

2017/18 Forecast Outturn against Budget

Budget

YTD Expenditure

Forecast Outturn

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Budget Area
P9  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

P7  Over/ 
(under) 

spend £m

Movement 
in forecast 

since P7
Legal and Democratic Services 0.2 0.0 0.2
Executive Office Division a (0.1) (0.1) 0.0
Resource Transformation 0.0 (0.1) 0.1
Policy, Strategy & Communications (0.2) (0.3) 0.1
ICT 0.0 (0.5) 0.5
Finance (0.4) (0.4) 0.0
HR & Workplace (0.9) (1.0) 0.1
Total (1.3) (2.3) 1.0

4.    Savings Delivery RAG Status

Total 
value of 
savings

Value at 
risk

Risk 
Total 

value of 
savings

Value at 
risk

Risk 

(£m) (£m) (%) (£m) (£m) (%)
R  No - savings are at risk 0.0 0.0 0% R  No - no plan in place 1.3 0.5 42%
G  Yes -savings are safe 3.2 0.6 19% A  Yes -plan in place but still to deliver 7.5 0.3 4%

C - Saving has been secured and delivered 2.5 0.0 0% G  Yes -savings can be taken from budget 4.4 0.0 0%

Grand Total 5.7 0.6 11% Grand Total 13.1 0.9 7%

Top 5 largest savings at risk in 17/18 (ordered by size of saving at risk) Top 5 largest savings at risk in 17/18 (ordered by size of saving at risk)
Value at 
Risk in 
17/18 

Value at 
Risk in 
17/18 

(£'000s) (£'000s)
274
200
150

51

17/18 18/19

ID – Name of Proposal ID – Name of Proposal

BE1  - 10 Restructuring support teams
R1 Reduce spending on telecoms 
IN06-1 Increase bookings for Lord Mayor's Mansion House & Chapel
BE13 Improvements to legal case management system

3.    Aged Debt Analysis

(0)

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

1to29_Days 30to59_Days 60to89_Days 90to119_Days 120to365_Days 1to2_Years 2to4.5_Years Over_4.5_Years

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 D
eb

t  
£0

00
s

Debt Age Range

Resources and City Director Aged debt 
Resources City Director

  Revised Budget                   Forecast Outturn         Outturn Variance Movement from P7
    £35.7m in P7               £33.4m in P7           (£2.3m) in P7

P9 £35.7m   £34.4m  (£1.3m)        £1.0m

  Revised Budget              Expenditure to Date       Forecast Outturn             Outturn Variance

     £6.9m  £0.8m £3.1m      (£3.9m)
           11% of budget           44% of budget

Page 86



Appendix F
Bristol City Council - HRA
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

SUMMARY HEADLINES

Capital Budget Monitor Report for Period 201709 - Gross Expenditure per Service & Scheme
Division: Housing Services Capital - Housing Revenue Account
15/01/2018

Gross expenditure by *Programme & Scheme Budget Expenditure 
to Date Forecast Variance

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 to

 
da

te

Fo
re

ca
st

Budget
Total  

Expenditure 
to Date

Commitments

Variance 
Total scheme 

budget vs 
actual + 

commitments

Forecast 
(including 
prior years 

actuals)

Variance 
Total 

scheme 
budget vs 

total 
scheme 
forecast

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 to

 
da

te
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 +
 

Co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 d
at

e

Fo
re

ca
st

* Programmes may cross division.  The data below relates to the named division only

13612 Capital - Professional Charges - Planned 1,541 0 1,541 0 0% 100% 2,294 752 0 (1,541) 2,294 0 33% 33% 100%
13613 Capital - Professional Charges - SP&G 1,025 0 1,025 (0) 0% 100% 1,374 349 0 (1,025) 1,374 (0) 25% 25% 100%
13614 Capital - Capitalised Works 4,248 1,542 3,985 (263) 36% 94% 4,833 2,127 1 (2,705) 4,570 (263) 44% 44% 95%
13615 Capital - Disabled Adaptations 1,854 1,727 2,530 676 93% 136% 4,610 4,483 19 (108) 5,286 676 97% 98% 115%
13616 Capital - Investment In Blocks - Planned 10,075 2,748 5,195 (4,880) 27% 52% 30,043 22,717 33 (7,293) 25,163 (4,880) 76% 76% 84%
13617 Capital - Investment In Blocks - SP&G 0 0 0 0 22 22 0 0 22 0 100% 100% 100%
13618 Capital - Miscellaneous Schemes 306 32 306 0 10% 100% 475 201 1 (273) 475 0 42% 43% 100%
13619 Capital - Neighbourhood Investment Projects 600 68 600 0 11% 100% 1,231 699 0 (532) 1,231 0 57% 57% 100%
13620 Capital - New Build  / Land Enabling Works 8,275 4,512 7,225 (1,050) 55% 87% 17,347 13,585 4,453 690 16,297 (1,050) 78% 104% 94%
13621 Capital - Planned Programme 14,151 7,187 11,831 (2,320) 51% 84% 208,270 21,606 707 (185,957) 205,950 (2,320) 10% 11% 99%
13622 Capital - Priority Stock 0 0 0 0 44 44 0 0 44 0 100% 100% 100%

HRA1 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 42,076 17,817 34,238 (7,837) 42% 81% 270,544 66,585 5,214 (198,745) 262,707 (7,837) 25% 27% 97%

Total Housing Services Capital - Housing Revenue Account division 42,076 17,817 34,238 (7,837) 42% 81% 270,544 66,585 5,214 (198,745) 262,707 (7,837) 25% 27% 97%

£000s % £000s %

Current Year (2017 ) Performanc
e to budget Scheme Total for Current Timeframe (FY2016 :  FY2021) Performance to 

budget

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement 

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
-0.9 -1.2 -1.3 -1.3 -8.9 -8.4 -8.5 -8.9

       

Forecast  2017 / 18  - Underspend  -£8.9m

Revised 
Budget

£0m

4. Capital Programme

3. Debt The HRA currently has rental arrears of £11.6m and a provision of £9.3m (80%). The arrears have increased throughout the year as a result of 
various factors relating to welfare reform. The rent arrears policy is being reviewed to support a clear RENT FIRST message to tenants and a further impact 
assessment is underway for Universal Credit roll out from March 2018.

£0

£2,000,000

£4,000,000

£6,000,000

£8,000,000

£10,000,000

£12,000,000

£14,000,000

Apr '16 May '16 Jun '16 Jul '16 Aug '16 Sep '16 Oct '16 Nov '16 Dec '16 Jan '17 Feb '17 Mar '17 Apr '17 May '17 Jun '17 Jul '17 Aug '17 Sep '17 Oct '17 Nov '17

HRA Total Arrears & Provision

Arrears

Provision

2. HRA Income & Expenditure Position

 

2017/18 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn 

P9 Variance
£'m £'m £'m

Income -121.3 -121.2 0.1
Repairs & Maintenance 31.7 30.4 -1.3
Supervision & Management 25.9 26.9 1.0
Special Services (Rechargable) 8.4 8.8 0.4
Rents, Rates & Taxes 1.9 1.9 0
Interest, Depn & Capital Charges 53.9 46.3 -7.6
Funding from Reserves -0.4 -1.9 -1.5
Total Surplus on the HRA 0.1 -8.8 -8.9

The Housing Revenue Account is showing a surplus 
for the year of £8.8m at period 9 an increase of 
£0.5m on period 7.   The forecast financial position 
is mostly as a consequence of slippage in the capital 
programme funded from revenue (£7.6m), details 
below in the capital section, and a forecast  
underspend in Repairs & Maintenance (£1.3m).   
The underspend in Repairs and Maintenance is 
mostly due to the change of life cycle for the paint 
programme from 7 to 10 years, and saving in 
repairs work due to regular servicing of items such 
as lifts .  There is an expected draw down from 
reserves of £1.9m to offset the forecast in year 
costs of implementing the replacement housing 
management system. The £0.4m change from last 
month is due to additional underspend on repairs 
and maintenance

Page 87



The  HRA Capital Programme is forecasting a £7.8m underspend. This forecast underspend has increased by £0.3m since P7 due to: a £85k slippage in this year on 
blocks due to  contractual issues, and reduction of £0.3m in New Build programme due to delays in procurement.  The overall variance is made up of the 
following: investment in Blocks a forecast underspend of £4.9m, where planned investment on some blocks is on hold pending the outcome of following Grenfell 
and further investment appraisals; investment in New Build a forecast underspend of £1m, where there are 2 sites with issues regarding planning and getting the 
site cleared prior to being able to start the work; investment in Planned Programmes a forecast (£2.3m) underspend of £2.3m, this is due to a £0.4m slippage in 
the roofing programme following issues regarding the tendering process, and £1.6m slippage relating to delays in the major repairs programme which is also 
awaiting outcomes from Grenfell and a further decisions in investment; there has been in £0.6m forecast overspend on disabled adaptations work; and a 
reduction of £0.2m on the kitchen programme due to lower cost. 

Page 88



Appendix G
Bristol City Council - DSG
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

SUMMARY HEADLINES

P9

1. Overall Position and Movement 

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
4.4 4.4 4.4 4.9 4.6 3.7 3.5 3.7

       

Fore cast  2017 / 18  - Over spend  £3.7m (in-year), £5.3m cumulative

Revised   
Budget             

£ 325.4m

 2.    Revenue Position by Division

Retained DSG

Brought 
forward 
position 

April 2017
£m

In-year 
Over/ 

(under) 
spend 

2017/18  
£m

Forecast 
Carry 

Forward 
postion 

March 2018
£m

Maintained Schools 0.0 0.0 0.0
Academy Recoupment 0.0 0.0 0.0
Early Years Block -0.4 0.3 -0.1
High Needs Block 2.3 4.2 6.5
Schools Block (Central) -0.3 -0.8 -1.1
Total 1.6 3.7 5.3

5.    Savings measures and mitigations being developed in the High Needs Block.

Category Proposal

Savings 
measures 

2017/18 £'000

Savings 
measures 

2018/19 £'000

Savings 
measures 

2019/20 £'000 Total £'000 Status
1.  Places only 1.1  Revise agreed places, based on occupancy, 

including FE
-761 -95 -856 On track

2.  SEN Top-ups 2.1  Negotiate lower contributions to FE Element 2s 
and to standardised FE top-ups

-500 -466 -966 On track

2.2  Review how we fund Bands 2 and 3 without EHC 
plans and process for allocating top-ups.

-250 -1,151 -1,401 On track

2.3 Develop revised models for special schools -1,166 -834 -2,000 Early Stages
3.  AP Top-ups 3.1  Develop revised models for PRUs -150 -150 Planned
4.  Other SEN 
provision

4.1  Use Capital Strategy to re-provide local, less 
expensive provision

0 0 Early Stages

5.  Other AP 
provision

5.1  Share funding for Early Intervention Bases with 
schools

-450 -450 Planned

5.2  Target saving for Hospital Education Service -200 -200 Planned
5.3  Restrict  external AP provision to budget -350 -150 -500 Planned

6.  Services 6.1  Target saving for services -408 -242 -650 Planned
Total full-year 
impact

-750 -5,102 -1,321 -7,173

3.  Latest Financial Position

There is still an overall cumulative forecast overspend of £5.3m 
for P9 which includes £1.6m brought forward from previous year.

Schools Forum considered the financial position at its meeting on 
16th January 2018.  The High Needs Budget continues to be the 
main concern, with offsetting underspends in the Growth Fund.

4.  Risks and Opportunities
The underlying position on the High Needs Budget in particular remains a great concern.  The measures set out in Table 5 are starting to be 
delivered with £0.750m already reflected in this month’s 2017/18  forecast, but full and swift delivery will not be straightforward for all 
components. For instance, discussions with Special Schools about a revised model for funding them are at an early stage.  The savings 
measures on their own are only going to address the in-year position, rather than the historic deficit, too.  Cabinet agreed to make available 
£2.7m more to the High Needs Block than the allocation in the DSG itself for 2018/19.  Combined with the savings measures in Table 5, this is 
part of a three year recovery plan for the service.

Page 89



Appendix H
Bristol City Council – Public Health
2017/18 – Budget Monitor Report 

SUMMARY HEADLINES

  P9

1. Overall Position and Movement Since Previous Period

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
-0.4 -0.4 -0.5 -0.5 -0.2 -0.5 -0.4 -0.6

       

Forecast  2017 / 18  - Underspend  -£0.6m

Revised 
Budget

£0m

2. Revenue Position by Area

Budget Area

Over/ 
(under) 
spend 

£m
Third Party Payments 0.5
Premises 0.1
Support Services 0.1
Employees -0.2
Supplies & Services -0.5
Income -0.6
Total -0.6

Latest Financial Position 
The £0.1m movement since P7 is due to a forecast saving on GP contracts in relation to 
healthchecks (where take-up is lower than planned).
Any unspent balance at the financial year end is expected to be transferred to the Public 
Health reserve for use in future years (in line with Department of Health guidance).

Page 90



Appendix I Period 9 Budget Monitoring - Summary

2017/18 - Year to date 2017/18 - Full Year Period 7 Forecast

Revised Budget Net Expenditure Variance
Approved 

Budget 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn

Outturn 
Variance 

Movement in 
Forecast

Forecast Outturn

People
Strategic Commissioning & Commercial Relations 532  711  179  735  710  780  70  (20,120) 20,900  
Care & Support - Adults 101,847  116,126  14,279  135,971  135,796  138,206  2,410  22,939  115,267  
Care & Support – Children & Families 45,854  42,428  (3,425) 61,352  61,138  61,626  488  12,906  48,720  
Education & Skills 10,994  8,462  (2,532) 10,318  14,658  15,441  783  9,328  6,113  
Management - People 1,851  2,638  787  2,497  2,468  2,526  58  332  2,194  
Early Intervention & Targeted Support 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  (27,677) 27,677  
Capital - People 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Total People 161,078  170,366  9,288  210,873  214,771  218,579  3,809  (2,292) 220,871  

Resources and City Director
ICT 9,082  11,850  2,768  12,437  12,110  12,110  0  489  11,621  
Legal and Democratic Services 4,988  6,273  1,285  6,651  6,651  6,898  247  275  6,623  
Finance 2,603  4,165  1,562  3,957  3,470  3,100  (370) 10  3,090  
HR & Workplace 3,031  3,349  318  5,275  4,041  3,145  (896) 43  3,102  
Resource Transformation 3,220  4,069  849  585  4,294  4,294  0  (42) 4,336  
Policy, Strategy & Communications 2,010  1,918  (92) 2,833  2,838  2,600  (238) 20  2,580  
Executive Office Division a 1,755  1,601  (153) 2,225  2,340  2,225  (115) 209  2,016  
Total Resources and City Director 26,689  33,225  6,537  33,963  35,744  34,372  (1,372) 1,004  33,368  

Neighbourhoods
Citizen Services 10,185  5,360  (4,825) 13,436  13,102  13,582  480  223  13,359  
Waste 23,609  25,580  1,970  26,607  27,479  27,479  0  (0) 27,479  
Neighbourhoods & Communities 10,088  9,847  (242) 12,068  13,451  13,249  (202) (118) 13,367  
Women's Commission 4  5  1  5  5  5  0  0  5  
Public Health -  General Fund 1,310  1,002  (308) 2,084  1,814  1,396  (418) 0  1,396  
Housing Options 11,449  8,911  (2,538) 13,202  12,932  12,064  (868) (187) 12,251  
Capital - Neighbourhoods 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Total Neighbourhoods 56,645  50,703  (5,942) 67,402  68,783  67,775  (1,008) (81) 67,856  

Place
Property (2,447) 2,550  4,997  (2,713) (3,141) (1,001) 2,140  (270) (731)
Planning 330  (1,198) (1,529) 1,256  933  349  (585) (10) 359  
Transport 6,172  (13,317) (19,489) 9,031  7,011  5,929  (1,082) (272) 6,201  
Economy 5,055  6,151  1,095  5,925  6,741  6,327  (413) 294  6,033  
Economy - ABS Team 0  (748) (748) 1,369  0  0  0  0  0  
Capital - Place 0  (1) (1) 0  0  0  0  0  0  
Energy 1,819  35  (1,783) 3,478  2,425  1,861  (564) 379  1,482  
Total Place 10,930  (6,529) (17,458) 18,346  13,969  13,465  (504) 122  13,343  

SERVICE NET EXPENDITURE 255,342  247,767  (7,576) 330,583  333,267  334,191  925  (1,246) 335,437  

Levies 839  931  92  1,119  1,119  1,119  0  0  1,119  
Corporate Expenditure 21,758  54,500  32,742  33,010  19,459  18,246  (1,213) 0  18,246  
Capital Financing 392  523  131  0  2,013  2,188  175  (0) 2,188  
Insurance Fund 0  1,252  1,252  0  0  0  0  0  0  
Year-end Transactions 6,565  8,850  2,285  0  8,854  8,854  0  0  8,854  
Corporate Revenue Funding (273,556) 21,689  295,245  (364,741) (364,741) (365,015) (274) (0) (365,015)
RELEASED FROM RESERVES 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  
TOTAL REVENUE NET EXPENDITURE 11,341  335,512  324,171  (29) (29) (417) (387) (1,246) 829  

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUMMARY 2017/18 - Year to date 2017/18 - Full Year Period 7 Forecast

Revised Budget Net Expenditure Variance
Approved 

Budget 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn

Outturn 
Variance 

Movement in 
Forecast

Forecast Outturn

Housing Revenue Account

Strategy, Planning & Governance (81,145) (95,619) (14,474) (111,159) (111,161) (108,961) 2,200  (0) (108,961)

Responsive Repairs 17,774  15,817  (1,957) 25,467  25,833  25,362  (472) (306) 25,668  

Planned Programmes 12,687  9,745  (2,941) 18,231  17,730  15,731  (1,999) (49) 15,780  

Estate Management 8,418  7,349  (1,069) 15,576  15,711  16,117  405  (140) 16,257  

HRA - Funding & Expenditure (188) 0  188  12,210  12,210  10,768  (1,442) 0  10,768  

HRA - Capital Financing 0  0  0  14,958  14,958  7,374  (7,584) 0  7,374  

HRA - Year-end transactions 0  0  0  24,718  24,718  24,718  0  0  24,718  
Total Housing Revenue Account (42,455) (62,707) (20,252) 0  0  (8,892) (8,892) (495) (8,396)

RING FENCED PUBLIC HEALTH and DSG 2017/18 - Year to date 2017/18 - Full Year Period 7 Forecast

Revised Budget Net Expenditure Variance
Approved 

Budget 
Revised 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn

Outturn 
Variance 

Movement in 
Forecast

Forecast Outturn

Public Health 207  (1,792) (1,999) 29  29  (533) (562) (99) (434)
Dedicated Schools Grant 0  (4,600) (4,600) 0  0  5,245  5,245  117  5,128  
Total Ring Fenced Budgets 207  (6,392) (6,599) 29  29  4,711  4,682  18  4,694  

£000s £000s £000s

£000s £000s £000s

£000s £000s £000s

Page 91


	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
	4 Minutes and Actions of the previous meeting (s)
	120218 OSMB Action Sheet

	7 Task and Finish Group Updates
	8 Arena Update
	Arena Planning Briefing

	9 Update on the Review of the Library Service
	10 Scrutiny Ways of Working - Outcomes from the Member Workshop
	Appendix A Workshop Programme
	Appendix B Attendance at Workshop
	Appendix C Notes from Workshop Tables
	Appendix D Key Principles
	Appendix E Statutory Requirements for Scrutiny

	11 Outcome from the Meeting in Common with South Gloucestershire Council re the Benjamin Condon Case
	12 Exempt Materials
	Appendix A  - Exempt Materials

	13 Work Programme
	14 Information Item:  Mayor's Forward Plan
	MFP Update 5th February 2018

	15 Information Item:  P9 Finance Report
	P9 - Appendix A - Summary
	P9 - Appendix B - People
	P9 - Appendix C - Place
	P9 - Appendix D - Neighbourhoods
	P9 - Appendix E - Resources
	P9 - Appendix F - HRA
	P9 - Appendix G - DSG
	P9 - Appendix H - Public Health
	P9 - Appendix  I - Summary Table


